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RBI License No. UBD.UP.1468 P, dated 20th Sept. 1997

Commencement 5th Sept. 1998

Registered Under Multi-state Cooperative Societies Act, 2002, Regn. No. L11016/10/2010-L&M dated 14th Sept. 2010

Area of Operations Uttar Pradesh, Delhi, five districts of Madhya Pradesh and two districts of Uttarakhand

Acquisitions �� In 2010 – Bhoj Nagarik Sahakari Bank Maryadit, Dhar, Madhya Pradesh
�� In 2012 – Malwa Commercial Coop. Bank Ltd., Indore, Madhya Pradesh

Regd. Office 13/1207, Ansari Road, Saharanpur-247001 (U.P.)
Telefax: 0132-2612381; 2612382; 9927145550

Head Office Head Office I
Hakikat Nagar, Saharanpur – 247001 (U.P.)
Phone: 0132-2726125; 2726147; 992713550

Head Office II
Fusion Square, Plot No 5A & 5B
Sector 126, Noida – 201301

Phone: 0120-4060000
info@shivalikbank.com
www.shivalikbank.com
www.facebook.com/shivalikbank

IFS Code SMCB000 1001 till 1031 where last 4 digits represent the relevant branch code 

Branches 31 branches in six clusters

�� Saharanpur 1 Cluster: Five branches 
�� Saharanpur 2 Cluster: Eight branches
�� NCR Cluster: Five branches
�� Madhya Pradesh Cluster: Five branches 
�� Lucknow Cluster: Two branches
�� Meerut Cluster: Six branches

Business Correspondent 3 - Affiliated with and working under various branches

Banking Hours 10 a.m. ~ 4.00 p.m. – Mondays to Saturdays
Holiday on 2nd and 4th Saturdays

ATMs 57 (all branches, BC offices and offsite ATMs)

Micro ATMs (m-ATMs) 272 m-ATMs deployed as on March 31, 2019

CBS Platform Finacle, by Infosys version 10.2.18 (as of April 2019)

ATM-cum-Debit Cards Rupay powered EMV cards can be used pan India 
Online shopping through Bill-Desk and Pay Secure gateway
Card can be used at all merchant establishments equipped with Point of Sale (PoS) terminals
Free accidental insurance 

Statutory Auditors GP Gupta & Co., Chartered Accountants, Lucknow



Shivalik Bank. 
When most 

focused at the 
apex, we 

focused at the 
bottom of the 

economic 
pyramid

WHEN SHIVALIK BANK WENT INTO BUSINESS IN 

1997, THE PRINCIPAL OBJECTIVE WAS TO 

SERVICE THE NEEDS OF THOSE AT THE 

BOTTOM OF INDIA’S ECONOMIC PYRAMID.

For some good reasons.

This section of society had 

been largely overlooked by 

the banking sector.

This section did not have 

adequate net worth to 

interest the large banks.

This section warranted the 

development of new credit 

appraisal tools.

This section accounted for a 

large number of customers.

The one reality that became 

increasingly evident was 

that to successfully address 

the growing needs of this 

segment, it warranted pluck, 

patience and persistence.

Shivalik Bank rose to this 

challenge. Developing the 

best products at the best 

prices backed by the best 

technology-driven service.

Treating this customer with 

the same seriousness and 

respect as their affluent 

equivalent.

Helping build Bharat.
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Shivalik Bank. 
Driven by the 
objective to 
make the biggest 
change with the 
smallest loan

Shivalik Bank. 
Seeding India’s 
grassroots with 
timely and 
affordable credit.

AT SHIVALIK BANK, WE WENT INTO BUSINESS WITH 

THE OBJECTIVE OF HELPING BUILD BHARAT.

ACROSS THE DECADES, THERE WAS A GROWING 

NEED TO EXTEND CREDIT TO THE POOR AND 

MARGINALISED.

Not with large loans, but 

with the smallest.

Not by addressing an 

affluent clientele, but by 

servicing the under-served.

Not by using the usual tools 

of credit appraisal but 

through the development 

of customised ones.

Not by plugging a short-

term need, but with the 

objective of making a 

segment of the population 

financially independent.

The result: a number of 

borrowers ploughed loans 

into their micro-businesses, 

bought capital equipment 

or raw materials, generating 

a surplus. Following which 

we reinvested the surplus 

into buying more raw 

materials and recruited 

more employees, 

generating an even bigger 

surplus. We serviced the 

loan and repaid it. Having 

established our credibility, 

we mobilised an even 

bigger loan, kickstarting a 

virtuous cycle of growth and 

prosperity.

At Shivalik Bank, we believe 

that the index of a 

successful community or 

country is not how its 

largest are faring, but how 

the dream to be 

entrepreneurial has 

percolated to the smallest.

Helping build Bharat.

The effort in building up 

collaterals was higher.

They were not considered 

credit-worthy.

They had no business scale to 

inspire interest.

They were not considered 

serious business people.

The tools to appraise their 

credit-worthiness needed to 

adhere to the traditional credit 

assessment criteria.

At Shivalik Bank, we perceived 

an opportunity.

We discovered that the 

borrowers were prudent, 

strengthening their repayment 

capability.

We recognised that the small 

trader or shop-keeper ranked 

high on repayment integrity.

We discovered that these 

small entrepreneurs borrowed 

within their repayment 

capacity.

We discovered that what was 

most needed was not life-long 

debt support, but a mere seed 

funding.

The result: performing assets 

accounted for a high 

98.43 percent of our lending. 

This validated that borrowers 

at the bottom of the economic 

pyramid represent a safe 

customer class.

Shivalik Bank did not just 

provide loans to the 

marginalised; it helped create 

an eco-system of trade, 

customers and employment.

Helping build Bharat.
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Shivalik Bank. 
More than a 
loan provider; 
an employment 
driver.

Shivalik Bank. 
Strengthening 
financial 
inclusion

AT SHIVALIK BANK, WHEN WE TURNED OUR FOCUS 

TOWARDS THE GRASSROOTS, WE RECOGNISED 

THAT THE BIGGEST CHALLENGE WAS GAINFUL 

EMPLOYMENT FOR INDIA’S MILLIONS.

WHEN SEEN FROM A NARROW PERSPECTIVE, ALL 

THAT WE, AT SHIVALIK BANK, ARE DOING IS 

PROVIDING FIRST-TIME CREDIT TO A NUMBER OF 

PEOPLE ACROSS INDIA’S GRASSROOT 

POPULATION.

A large number of people 

within the communities of 

our presence were relatively 

under-educated to get 

good jobs.

By providing loans to 

entrepreneurs at the bottom 

of the country’s economic 

pyramid, Shivalik Bank 

helped achieve what is 

emerging as a national 

priority.

The Bank funded 

entrepreneurs; when they 

reported a surplus, they 

usually employed workers to 

grow the business; when 

the business grew, the 

number of employees grew.

The result: one of the most 

visible impacts of Shivalik 

Bank’s intervention is not in 

the quality of its debt book 

or the large number of 

customers, but  in the 

number of people who our 

timely financing helped 

recruit. It is in the multiplier 

impact of their salaries on 

their local neighbourhoods 

– a positive economic 

domino effect.

Helping build Bharat.

When seen from a slightly 

wider perspective, we are 

taking a cause that is large, 

relevant and enduring.

Financial inclusion.

We help these small customers 

create their first bank account. 

We help them with timely 

credit. 

We empower them to pay 

their employees digitally. 

We encourage them to 

collaborate with partners 

towards a larger objective – to 

pay their vendors through 

formal financial channels.

The result: when Goods & 

Services Tax was introduced, a 

number of our borrowers 

found it easier to comply – 

capitalising on the fiscal 

benefits arising out of the 

compliance, strengthening 

their competitiveness, drawing 

them into the national 

mainstream.

Helping build Bharat.
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Bharat in  
numbers

LEVEL OF URBANISATION 
INCREASED

PROPORTION OF SAVING 
HOUSEHOLDS REPORTING 
SAVINGS IN INSTITUTIONS (%)

DISTRIBUTION OF HOUSEHOLDS WHO 
TOOK ANY LOAN BY SOURCE OF LOAN 
(%)

HOUSEHOLDS THAT TOOK 
ANY LOAN IN THE LAST 
ONE YEAR (%)

THE PROPORTION OF RURAL 
POPULATION HAS DECLINED

27.81
% in 2001 Census 

52.8
Agricultural 
Households  

59.0
Only Institutional

43.5
Agricultural 
Households 

68.84
% in 2011 Census 

94.0
Of the total amount was 
reported to have been 
saved in institutions. 

(Census Report, Government of India)

31.16
% in 2011 Census

44.6
Non-Agricultural 
Households 

32.0
Only 
Non-Institutional  

37.2
Non-Agricultural 
Households   

72.19
% in 2001 Census 

26.0
Households had at least 
one woman member who 
saved in an institution. 

9.0
Both

(NABARD All India Rural Financial Inclusion Survey 2016-17)

(NABARD All India Rural Financial Inclusion Survey 2016-17)(NABARD All India Rural Financial Inclusion Survey 2016-17)

LARGE. GROWING. HIGH POTENTIAL.
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Vision  
and values

Vision

To serve the lowest 
strata of society with 
the best products at the 
best prices and the best 
technology-driven 
customer service; at 
the same time, being a 
model employer for the 
national industry and 
emerging as a global 
role model in the small 
banking sector.

Values

Strong relationships with  
employees and customers

¢ Building 
trust

Mutual respect for all  
employees and customers

Customer-centricity

¢ Listen to  
the 
customer

¢ Customer 
delight

¢ Customer 
connect

Big on integrity and reputation

Shivalik Bank in numbers

77.21
Net worth
(B crore)

10.30
YoY increase 
in public 
deposits 
(%)

1766.44
Total business 
(B crore)

57.01
Credit to sub-25 
lac ticket size of 
total advance 
(%)

715.24
Advances
(B crore)

1.19
Percentage of 
Net NPAs 
(%)

1051.20
Deposits
(B crore)

407.81
Credit to sub-25 
lac ticket size 
(B crore)

3.85
Profit after tax 
(B crore)

16.09
YoY increase in 
proportion of 
sub-25 lac loans  
(%)

442.00
Total credit 
extended to priority 
sector (B crore)

Growth over the years
Parameter FY2014-15 FY2015-16 FY2016-17 FY2017-18 FY2018-19

Capital

Share capital (B Crore) 44.66 43.89 45.10 45.70 57.34

Capital adequacy ratio (%) 13.75 13.85 15.07 12.68 13.07

Reserves (B Crore) 9.78 12.83 19.94 21.25 21.69

Net worth (B Crore) 57.13 61.22 65.69 65.65 77.21

Deposits & Advances

Deposits (B Crore) 775.59 809.60 916.97 953.40 1051.20

CASA (B Lacs) 138.54 256.71 332.76 319.52 336.10

Cost of deposits (%) 8.20 7.85 7.02 6.45 6.17

Advances (B Crore) 557.09 602.22 559.51 611.61 715.24

Yield on advances (%) 13.65 13.03 12.99 12.44 12.15

CD ratio (%) 71.83 69.79 61.03 64.15 68.04

Investment

Total investments (B Crore) 212.34 184.80 245.28 227.85 246.30

Yield on investments (%) 9.63 8.32 8.86 7.12 7.87

Interest Income & Expenses

Interest income (B Crore) 58.67 94.97 100.85 99.03 104.92

Interest expense (B Crore) 40.37 62.10 61.79 59.69 61.39

Net interest income (B Crore) 18.30 32.87 39.06 39.34 43.53

Non-Interest Income

Non-interest income (B Crore) 5.71 5.01 4.76 7.25 10.58

Profitability

Total business (B Crore) 1332.68 1411.82 1476.48 1565.00 1766.44

Operating profit (B Crore) 9.21 15.09 17.63 5.47 4.83

Net profit after tax & provisions (B Crore) 4.95 7.35 10.02 3.17 3.85

Net interest margin (%) 4.22 3.88 4.34 4.15 3.99

Average assets (B Crore) 554.60 862.43 961.72 1017.40 1089.86

Dividend (%) 8.00 9.00 9.00 8.00 8.00* 

Non-Performing Assets (NPA)

Gross NPA (%) 0.48 1.26 2.29 2.14 1.57

Net NPA (%) 0.14 0.60 1.35 1.45 1.19

Employee Productivity

Number of employees 247 256 389 503 486

Business per employee (B Lacs) 539.55 445.20 430.15 322.68 365.03

Operating profit per employee (B Lacs) 3.73 5.89 5.14 1.12 1.00

*Proposed subject to approval in ensuing AGM.

¢ Long-term 
relationship 

¢ Moral  
values 

¢ Respect 
one 
another

¢ Go an extra 
mile to 
help 
customers

¢ Being  
ethical

¢ Respond  
to 
people

¢ Never 
underestimate 
the customer

¢ Unmatched 
service

¢ Transparency¢ Honesty 

¢ Put 
yourself in 
the other’s 
shoes

¢ Honour each 
other’s 
commitments

72.27
Total priority 
sector credit ratio 
(%)

10   |  Shivalik Mercantile Co-operative Bank Ltd. Annual Report 2018-19   |  11



Building a 
digital Bharat 

SHIVALIK BANK OFFERS A RANGE OF SERVICES AND TECHNOLOGIES THAT ENSURE EASY 
ACCESSIBILITY FOR CUSTOMERS. IN THIS AGE OF DIGITISATION, THE BANK USES ITS RICH 
EXPERIENCE AND LEVERAGES TECHNOLOGY TO MAXIMISE PENETRATION AND PROVIDE 
FINANCIAL SERVICES. 

Mobile banking
The Bank re-launched an upgraded app compatible 
for Android and iOS devices, providing services like 
account enquiry, funds transfer, utility bill payments 
and the creation and liquidation of term deposits. It 
enhanced the customer experience and provided a 
platform where they could enquire about products 
and services. Along with a two-factor authentication 
process, the Bank also implemented various security 
solutions to ensure data security.

Aadhar-enabled services
The Bank incorporated Aadhar-based services for 
enhanced security and operational efficiency. It 
introduced Aadhar-based biometric technologies to 
offer banking services like account opening and carrying 
out of transactions using m-ATMs through AEPS (Aadhar 
Enabled Payment System) for fund transfer and APBS 
(Aadhar Payments Bridge System) for the direct transfer 
of subsidies. The use of Aadhar-based services built 
customer confidence and financial inclusion.

Debit cards
The Bank offers RuPay EMV debit cards to all customers. 
Chip cards, when used in conjunction with a personal 
identification number (PIN), are a solution to counterfeit 
and lost / stolen card fraud. The chip prevents the card 
from being counterfeited; the PIN uniquely identifies the 
owner and prevents it from being used by someone else, 
if lost or stolen. These cards can be used in any ATM, PoS 
(point-of-sale) terminal and e-commerce website across 
the country. The debit cards issued by the Bank also 
includes an accident insurance of B1 lac.

m-ATM
The Bank backs the idea of ‘Digital India’, taking steps 
to promote digital transactions through its network of 
m-ATMs. M-ATMs are android-based tablets which 
come with a printer and biometric sensor. The Bank 
uses this device to offer banking services like account 
opening, cash deposit, cash withdrawal, fund transfer, 
mini statement and balance enquiry to customers 
residing in remote areas. The Bank provides door-to-
door service through its large network of agents; 
these transactions are reflected in the Bank’s CBS in 
real time.

Internet banking
The Bank provides internet banking services to 
ensure that customers have access to banking 
services from anywhere across the world. Its secure 
operating platform and user-friendly interface 
allow for a seamless customer experience. During 
FY2018-19, the Bank got an approval from RBI to 
offer real-time transaction capabilities through 
Internet Banking.

Recylcer
A cash recycler is a machine which provides customers 
with both options; depositing cash as well as dispensing 
cash at one place. It reduces the manual handling 
process on the one hand and increases operational 
efficiency on the other by automating the cash cycle. 
Shivalik is one of the few banks in the country to provide 
these machines at all its branches.
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Building digitally 
for the future 

SHIVALIK BANK HAS ALIGNED ITS VISION PERFECTLY WITH 
THE GOVERNMENT’S VISION OF ‘DIGITAL INDIA’.

In numbers

The Bank provides digital banking 
services to its wide clientele. It has 
invested, significantly, on the 
upgradation of technology to ensure 
improved customer satisfaction and 
reduction of technical downtime. The 
Customer Relationship Management 
(CRM) team of the Bank also took the 
initiative of calling and guiding 
customers whose transactions were 
repeatedly declining pointing out the 
reasons for a decline, such as the lack of 
sufficient account balance and keying in 
an incorrect password encouraging 
customers to transact digitally. Other 
agents helped customers with m-ATM 

transactions, increasing their digital 
awareness and experience.

The Bank believes that digitalisation is 
the way forward, taking initiatives to 
create customer awareness about the 
benefits of debit cards and online 
transactions. This led to the Bank 
emerging among the top-20 co-
operative banks across India in 
digitalising services and transactions. The 
Bank was also recognised by the National 
Payments Corporation of India (NPCI) as 
an active member of  ‘Digital India’, for 
encouraging and enabling rural India to 
moderate its cash-dependence.

�� Became one of the top-20 co-
operative banks in terms of digital 
transactions across India

�� Debit card users grew by 23 percent

�� PoS and ATM transactions grew by 
over 40 percent

�� e-commerce transactions and mobile 
banking users reported approximately 
100 percent growth

�� New internet banking services led to 
an approximately 200 percent growth 
in Internet Banking users

ATM transactions (hits)

15,00,661
FY2017-18

20,98,878
FY2018-19

Mobile banking users

3,937
2017-18

8,445
2018-19

Debit card users

1,14,834
FY2017-18

1,41,054
FY2018-19

AEPS transactions

7,59,637
FY2017-18

7,88,389
FY2018-19

Internet banking users

6,996
FY2017-18

20,636
FY2018-19

Paperless account opening

8,810
FY2017-18

40,753
FY2018-19

PoS transactions

59,751
2017-18

86,873
2018-19

63,150
FY2017-18

1,19,762
FY2018-19

e-commerce transactions
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Building for Bharat since 1998 
1998  1999 2002  2010 2012  2013 2014 2015  2016 2017 2018

Launches first 
branch in 
Saharanpur on 
September 5, 
1998

�� Launches net 
banking and 
mobile 
banking. 

�� Total business 
of the Bank 
crosses B1000 
crore. 

�� Achieves net 
worth of B50 
crore

�� Completes 
installation of 
Cash Deposit 
Machines and 
ATMs across 
branches and 
BC offices

�� Becomes the 
first urban 
co-operative 
bank in North 
India to issue 
debit cards for 
online/PoS 
shopping

�� Collaborates 
with merchants 
to offer 
in-house PoS 
devices for 
electronic 
payments

�� Launches SMS 
banking, 
enabling easier 
accessibility

Achieves full 
branch 
computerisation, 
the first in 
Saharanpur 
district

�� Launches 
Cloud-based 
RTGS/NEFT 
services

�� Launches 
NACH and 
NECS to 
improve the 
Bank’s payment 
system

�� Launches 
Green PIN 
– paperless 
ATM PIN

�� Becomes 
enrolled with 
Direct Benefit 
Transfer (DBT)

�� Installs solar 
panels at ATMs 
to maintain 
uptime and 
reduce the 
carbon 
footprint

Second branch 
becomes 
operational in 
Gangoh

�� Sets up a 
second head 
office in Noida

�� Sets up 
centralised 
account 
opening and 
loan appraisal 
functions

�� Launches 
account 
opening 
through 
m-ATMs

�� Implements 
e-KYC 
authentication

�� Goes live on 
IMPS

�� Launches 
Affordable 
Housing 
Scheme

�� Receives RBI 
approval to 
open 10 new 
branches 

Third branch 
becomes 
operational in 
Hakikat Nagar

�� Achieves a 
deposit base of 
B100 crore and 
becomes a 
Tier-II bank, 
covering the 
entire state of 
Uttar Pradesh

�� Becomes the 
first and only 
multi-state 
urban co-
operative bank 
of Uttar 
Pradesh, 
following the 
acquisition of 
Bhoj Nagrik 
Sahakari Bank 
Maryadit, Dhar, 
Madhya 
Pradesh

�� Achieves 
complete Core 
Banking Status 
(CBS)

�� Commences 
migration of 
CBS platform to 
Finacle by 
Infosys, India’s 
second largest 
technology 
company

�� Implements 
paperless 
account 
opening service 
for SHG 
customers

�� Implements 
in-house tools 
on Power Apps 
to track the 
progress of live 
projects

�� Launches digital 
village initiative

�� Direct 
membership of 
NFS from NPCI

�� Ties up with Bill 
Desk and BBPS 
(Bharat Bill 
Payment 
System)

�� Implements LOS 
(Loan 

Origination 
System) 

�� Procures Fraud 
Risk 
Management 
(FRM) from NPCI 

�� Strengthenes 
security of 
online 
transactions 
through debit 
card by adding 
another level of 
authentication 

�� Receives new 
BIN from NPCI 
for international 
card usage/ 
acceptance

�� Upgrades all the 
CDMs into 
recyclers, 
increasing time 
efficiency and 
customer 
convenience

�� Submits an 
application to 
RBI for transition 
to a Small 
Finance Bank

Opens a second 
branch in Madhya 
Pradesh, following 
the acquisition of 
Malwa 
Commercial 
Cooperative Bank 
Limited, Indore. 

�� Becomes the 
first urban 
co-operative 
bank in North 
India to start 
issuing RuPay 
ATM-cum-debit 
cards

�� Installs ATMs at 
all branches

�� Starts opening 
business 
correspondent 
offices in 
remote areas of 
Uttar Pradesh 
and Madhya 
Pradesh

�� Changes CBS 
platform to 
Profile by FIS

2005
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Overview 

Shivalik Mercantile Co-operative Bank Limited was registered as 
a co-operative society under the Uttar Pradesh Co-operative 
Societies Act, 1965. The Reserve Bank of India granted it the 
license  to conduct banking operations in the Saharanpur 
district as a Primary Urban Co-operative Bank. Operations 
began on the 5th of September, 1998, and since then, Shivalik 
Bank extended its footprint and achieved Tier-II status. 
Following the acquisition of another Bank in Dhar, Madhya 
Pradesh in 2010, Shivalik Bank de-registered from the Uttar 
Pradesh Co-operative Societies Act, 1965, and was subsequently 
registered under the Multi-state Co-operative Societies Act, 
2002. Shivalik Bank went on to acquire another Bank in Indore , 
Madhya Pradesh in 2012. The Bank is the first and largest 
multi-state urban co-operative bank in Uttar Pradesh, with its 
head-office split between Saharanpur and Noida.   

Footprint
The Bank continues to stand as a co-operative that addresses 
the growing needs of the lowest-income economic strata, in 
the areas of its presence, through a combination of loan 
responsiveness, superior service and affordable loan cost, a 
compelling value proposition. The Bank’s micro-finance 
support through self-help groups (SHGs) helps address the 
entire eco-system of borrowers in any location, 
strengthening the Bank’s visibility and effectiveness. 

The Bank is spread across Uttar Pradesh and Madhya 
Pradesh. It operates through 31 branches. In Uttar Pradesh, it 
has its presence in Saharanpur, Shamli, Meerut, 
Muzaffarnagar, Hapur, Ghaziabad, Noida (National Capital 
Region) and Lucknow. In Madhya Pradesh it has its presence 
in Indore, Dhar, Khargone, Ujjain and Dewas. 

Awards and recognition
�� Received ‘Banking Service Excellence Award’ in 

2017. 
�� Received ‘The Best I.T. Head FCBA Award’ in 2016. 
�� Adjudged among ‘India’s Top 100 Co-operative 

Banks 2015 Awards’ and received ‘Certificate of 
Excellence’ by BitStream Mediawoks.
�� Received ‘Young Achiever’s Award’ by Hindustan 

Media Ventures. 
�� Mr. Suveer Kumar Gupta (MD & CEO) was awarded 

‘The Best Youth CEO’ under the mid-sized co-
operative bank category in the FCBA Awards.

Products and services
The Bank offers numerous deposit schemes (savings 
and current accounts, fixed and recurring deposits), 
loan products (demand loans, term loans, revolving 
credit) and additional services like insurance, 
payments through NEFT and RTGS, ATM/CDM 
facilities, and providing foreign-exchange and 
point-of-sale (PoS) solutions. 

Strengths
Shivalik Bank is the largest multi-state urban co-
operative bank in Uttar Pradesh. The Bank leverages its 
understanding of cutting-edge technology and 
experience to widen its footprint and transform the 
customer experience.  

Products 
and services  

Deposits

Savings 

Fixed 
deposits 

Flexi-recurring 
deposits 

Door-to-door 
deposits

Current

Loans 
�� Home loans

�� Personal and 
consumption loans 

�� Gold loans 

�� Car/Auto loans

�� Two-wheeler loans 

�� Loans for working 
capital

�� Reverse mortgage 
loans

�� Rooftop solar loans 

�� Loans to 
professionals and 
the self-employed

�� Loans for micro/SSI 
units

�� Retail trader loans 

�� Commercial 
building loans 

�� Commercial vehicle 
loans

�� Limits to self-help 
groups (SHGs and 
mini-SHGs)

�� Loans against 
warehouse receipts

�� Shivalik Green Card 
(Kisan Credit Card)

Digital services
�� Internet banking

�� Mobile banking

�� SMS banking

�� ATM-cum-debit 
card

�� PoS machines

�� Fund transfer (RTGS/
NEFT/ IMPS/ NACH)

�� AEPS (Aadhar 
Enabled Payment 
System)

�� e-commerce

�� Utility bill payments

�� APBS (Aadhar 
Payment Bridge 
System)

Add-on services
�� Insurance �� Lockers �� Remittances �� Business correspondents �� Forex
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Areas of  
operation 

Branch Address Branch code Contact number Email id

Cluster 1 - Saharanpur 1

Ansari Road 13/1207, Ansari Road, 
Saharanpur-247001

1001 (0132) 2612381, 
2612382, 9927145550

bh.saharanpur.ar@shivalikbank.com

Hakikat Nagar Hakikat Nagar, Saharanpur-247001 1003 (0132) 2726125, 
2726147, 9927175550

bh.saharanpur.hn@shivalikbank.com

Chilkana Road Chilkana Road, Saharanpur-247001 1009 9690990033 bh.saharanpur.cr@shivalikbank.com

Sharda Nagar 1/1245 Wake Mohalla, Khalasi Line, 
Sharda Nagar, Saharanpur-247001

1017 84770 06125 bh.saharanpur.sn@shivalikbank.com

Madhav Nagar Nr. Telephone Exchange, Madhav 
Nagar, Saharanpur-247001

1021 9837060380 bh.saharanpur.mn@shivalikbank.com

BC Offices: Chhutmalpur (affiliated to Hakikat Nagar Branch)
Offsite ATMs: Chhutmalpur

Cluster 2 - Saharanpur 2

Gangoh Rambagh Road, Gangoh-247341 1002 (01331) 234437, 
234438, 9927116660

bh.gangoh@shivalikbank.com

Deoband Subhash Chowk, Railway Road, 
Deoband-247554

1004 (01336) 222808, 
9568880001

bh.deoband@shivalikbank.com

Ambehta Main Road, Ambehta, 
Saharanpur-247340

1005 (01331) 225311, 
9927165550

bh.ambehta@shivalikbank.com

Nagal G.T. Road, Nagal 1011 (01336) 231112, 
9690004794

bh.nagal@shivalikbank.com

Sarsawa Main Market, Sarsawa 1012 (01331) 246125, 
9690004994

bh.sarsawa@shivalikbank.com

Nanauta Deoband Road, Nanauta 1013 (01336) 253125, 
9927986125

bh.nanauta@shivalikbank.com

Rampur Moh. Mahajanan, Rampur Maniharan 1014 (01336) 252125, 
9927007125

bh.rampur@shivalikbank.com

Shamli 99/2, V.V.Internal College Road, 
Shamli-247776

1026 (0139)8251826, 
9045747103

shamli.branch@shivalikbank.com

BC Offices: Nakur (affiliated to Ambehta Branch)
Offsite ATMs: Nakur, Thana Bhawan

Cluster 3 – National Capital Region

Noida 27 Bhoja Mkt., Nr. Vinayak Hospital, 
Sector 27, Noida-201301

1007 (0120) 2555333/5334, 
9540407222

bh.noida.27@shivalikbank.com

Ghaziabad G.T. Road, Nr. Bhatia Mod, 
Ghaziabad-201001

1015 (0120) 2860003, 
8750037222

bh.ghaziabad.gt@shivalikbank.com

Noida 135 WA 68, Sector 135, Noida – 201301 1016 99901 06135 bh.noida.135@shivalikbank.com

Indirapuram Raison Shopping Complex, Ahinsa 
Khand-II, Indirapuram, Ghaziabad

1019 (0120) 2651717, 
9717490952

bh.indrapuram@shivalikbank.com

Noida 45 SDA-8, Sector-45, Noida-201303 1027 9818445983 bh.noida.45@shivalikbank.com

Offsite ATMs: Dadri, Salarpur Khadar

Branch Address Branch code Contact number Email id

Cluster 4 - Madhya Pradesh

Dhar Mandi Samiti Road, Opp. Dhareshwar 
Temple, Dhar – 454001

1006 (07292) 222413, 
9644165550

bh.dhar@shivalikbank.com

Indore 6, Jagjivan Ram Nagar, Main Road, 
Patnipura Chauraha, Indore-452011

1010 (0731) 2704268, 
7354115550

bh.indore.jc@shivalikbank.com

Khargone 73 Jawahar Nagar, Khargone, 451001 1022 (07282) 232425 bh.khargone@shivalikbank.com

Dewas 8, Tarani colony, A.B. Road, Dewas, 
455001

1029 7272490450 bh.dewas@shivalikbank.com

Ujjain 37, Ujjain Trade Centre, Ghatkarpar 
Marg, Near BJP Office, Freeganj, Ujjain 
– 456001, 

1030 96300 11030 bh.ujjain@shivalikbank.com

Cluster 5 - Lucknow

Alambagh 565-KA/68, Amrudhi Bagh, Sringar 
Nagar, Alambagh, Lucknow 226005 

1023 (0522) 4241777 bh.lucknow.ab@shivalikbank.com

Vikas Nagar Asha Roop Apartment, 1/135, Vikas 
Nagar, Lucknow 226022

1024 (0522) 4241888  bh.lucknow.vn@shivalikbank.com

Cluster 6  - Meerut 

Meerut C-2/6, NaiSadak, Shastri Nagar, Garh 
Road, Meerut-250004

1008 (0121) 2604364, 
9690563000

bh.meerut.sn@shivalikbank.com

Muzaffarnagar Ground Floor 311, South Bhopa Road, 
Opposite LIC Office, Nai Mandi, 
Muzaffarnagar-251001

1018 98374 00037 bh.muzaffarnagar.nm@shivalikbank. 
com

Khatauli Ward No. 8, Ganeshpuri, G.T. Road, 
Khatauli-251201, Distt. Muzaffarnagar 

1020 9568925000 bh.khatauli@shivalikbank.com

Hapur W – 29/73(1),Jal Nigam office, 
Opposite Collector Ganj, Railway 
Road, Hapur – 245101

1025 7302710636 bh.hapur@shivalikbank.com

Mawana 2422-2423, Hastinapur, Mawana,Near 
Subhash Chowk, Dist. Meerut – 
250401

1028 7055395000 bh.mawana@shivalikbank.com

Sardhana 567-569, Chaudhary Market, Near 
Union Bank, Binoli Road, Sardhana, 
Dist. Meerut-250342

1031 (01237) 237015 bh.sardhana@shivalikbank.com
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Chairman’s overview

Introduction
When we went into business two decades 
ago, we were not just inspired by how we 
would grow our bank; we were inspired by 
how we would build Bharat.

The target segment of customers from 
‘Bharat’ was consciously selected. We 
recognised that much of India’s 
mainstream banking focused on the 
growth coming out of urban spaces. Few 
financial intermediaries focused on the 
large population in semi-urban and rural 
locations.

At Shivalik Bank, we believed that this was 
an anomaly needing urgent attention for a 
good reason: 68.84 per cent of India lived 
in semi-urban and rural locations (Source : 
2001 Census, Government of India) and a 
large part of this population could not 
derive the benefits of mainstream banking 
services. There was a growing recognition 
that if a large part of this population could 
get access to credit – micro-credit to 
begin with – it would kick-start an 
economic multiplier effect from the 
grassroots upwards.

Besides, we believed that access to 
mainstream banking would help a large 
part of India’s under-exposed population 
enhance economic independence, 
increase social standing, increase 
empowerment and kickstart a virtuous 
cycle of increased spending on health 
care, education and nutrition.

Service
At Shivalik Bank, we recognised that 
addressing the semi-urban and rural 

consumer would not just warrant a 
change in our locational presence; it 
would warrant a completely new way of 
doing business.

Most players in our space would have paid 
lip service to an engagement with 
customers at the bottom of India’s 
economic pyramid. At Shivalik Bank, we 
trained our people in customised service, 
transformed our interiors, enhanced our 
locational proximity – the complete 
customisation of our business model 
around our target segment.

Most players in our space would have 
focused on the credit disbursal and 
repayment. At Shivalik Bank, we focused 
on the credit to be deployed, transforming 
our role from that of a financial 
intermediary into a guide and friend.

Most players in our space would have 
under-invested in technology on the 
grounds that our targeted customer was 
not demanding. At Shivalik Bank, we 
invested in cutting-edge technologies 
with the express objective of enhancing 
service.

Most players in our space would have 
insisted on income-validating documents 
as a hedge against credit risk and probable 
default. At Shivalik Bank, we extended 
beyond conventional credit appraisal 
methods towards qualitative filters 
instead.

Most players in our space would have 
focused on providing sizable credit to a 
relatively small number of people. At 
Shivalik Bank, we selected to extend 

relatively small ticket credit to a large 
number of people, instead. 

At Shivalik Bank, we believe that after 20 
years, our business focus continues to be 
as relevant. In an India that is adding the 
largest annual population increment each 
year and is expected to emerge as the 
most populous country by 2024, we 
foresee that our market will continue to 
grow. In an under-penetrated Bharat, our 
prospects continue to be attractive, 
strengthening possibilities of a multi-year 
growth journey.

Economy driver
At Shivalik Bank, we never lose sight of the 
fact that we are not just a bank focused on 
superior profits. We are an economy driver 
engaged in taking Bharat ahead. We 
believe that every loan or service that we 
provide is, in some way translating into 
livelihoods and increased consumption, 
setting off a chain of positive economic 
realities.

Shivalik Bank provides semi-urban 
individuals with the opportunity to save 
and build financial assets. The Bank is also 
engaged in the disbursement of 
microfinance loans, small ticket business 
loans and retail trade loans. 

The Bank selected to focus on 
geographies – states of Uttar Pradesh, 
Madhya Pradesh and National Capital 
Region (NCR) - marked by under-
penetration, and where even reasonable 
credit access could generate a 
disproportionately superior impact. Within 
these geographies, we focused on districts 

marked by progressive aspirations, on the 
one hand and lack of banking facilities on 
the other. The result is that the Bank’s 
branches have grown from three at the 
close of FY2008-09 to 31 branches today, 
enhancing customer proximity. 

The business has grown attractively: 
revenues increased every single year in 
the last 20 years, the total profit increased 
from B136 lacs in FY2009-10 to B385 lacs 
in FY2018-19, reporting a CAGR of 
12 percent. The average loan size was 
B4.17 lacs and the Bank protected its 
viability by restricting net non-performing 
assets, as on March 31, 2019 to only 
1.19 percent. The result is that bank has 
conclusively demonstrated that the 
customer at the bottom of the pyramid is 
credible and that the Bank’s business 
model is viable.

Shivalik Bank’s commitment to serve 
unmet needs of under-addressed 
customer segments has acquired traction. 
By the close of the last financial year, the 
Bank had addressed the needs of more 
than 17,000 borrowers. Nearly 8 percent of 
the Bank’s customer base comprised 
women, strengthening grassroot 
empowerment. Besides, the Bank had 
employed approximately 543 full-time 
employees directly and 77 indirectly. In 
addition, the Bank also provided income 
generation opprtunities to 45 
intermediaries (Village Level 
Entrepreneurs, Daily Deposit Agents and 
Business Correspondents) across three 
states.

More than the financial numbers, we 
believe that Shivalik Bank has been able to 
enhance a sense of empowerment in the 
communities of its presence. There is a 
greater assurance that if an individual 
possesses an economically productive 
idea, there is a bank i.e. Shivalik, that will 
trust the story with corresponding credit. 
There is a bigger confidence that if they 
need advice at the commencement of 

their entrepreneurial journey, there will be 
a business ally i.e. Shivalik, to guide them 
along the way. There is a bigger 
recognition that should the micro-
enterprise seek to grow, there would 
always be a business partner i.e. Shivalik, 
to provide increased support.

In view of these realities, we believe that 
Shivalik Bank’s business model is likely to 
remain robust, profitable and sustainable.

Sectoral relevance
India’s banking system is at the cusp of 
change following policy measures to 
reduce vulnerability on the one hand and 
initiatives to strengthen regulatory 
frameworks and systemic resilience on the 
other.

As of March 2019, the capital-to-risk 
weighted assets ratio (CRAR) of scheduled 
commercial banks (SCBs) stood at 14.2 per 
cent higher than the regulatory 
requirement of 9 per cent. The 
Government’s efforts to infuse capital into 
public sector banks enhanced systemic 
confidence.

The RBI implemented frameworks on 
countercyclical capital buffer (CCCB), 
leverage ratio, Liquidity Coverage Ratio 
(LCR) and Net Stable Funding Ratio (NSFR). 
To manage concentration risks better and 
align Indian banks with international 
norms, the Reserve Bank proposed 
guidelines on large exposures, which 
became effective from April 1, 2019. The 
latest round of reforms published by the 
Basel Committee on Banking Supervision 
(BCBS) in December 2017 have 
implementation timelines stretching up to 
2022.

There is a growing optimism related to the 
role of Urban Co-operative Banks (UCBs) in 
India. Asset concentration among UCBs 
has increased: the bi-modal distribution of 
UCBs with peaks in the asset size between 
B0.25 to B0.5 billion bracket and in the B1 
to B2.5 billion bracket in FY2014-15 

became uni-modal with B1 to B2.5 billion 
buckets. Moreover, the share of UCBs with 
an asset size  of more than B10 billion 
increased to 6.2 per cent in FY2017-18 
from 4.6 per cent in FY2014-15. (Source : 
RBI Report, 2018)

In addition, the RBI policy to permit 
voluntary transition of UCBs into Small 
Finance Banks provides a growth path for 
well-managed institutions.

Looking ahead
The Bank has been driven by governance, 
which reconciles Board member 
composition, professionalism at all levels, 
decentralised management, investments 
in a superior technology stack, wider 
digital banking offerings compared with 
competitors and complete compliance 
with key RBI requirements.

The Bank enjoyed a capital adequacy ratio 
of 13.07 percent at the close of FY2018-19, 
indicating adequate safety on the one 
hand and room to grow on the other. 

India’s MSME sector (which the Bank 
addresses) – comprised around 50 million 
MSMEs (registered and unregistered), 
employing 120 million, second only to 
agriculture. The MSME sector created 13.5 
million to 14.9 million new jobs in four 
years, a job growth rate of 13.9 percent, 
contributing 6.11 percent of 
manufacturing GDP, 24.6 percent of 
services GDP and 40 percent of exports.

At Shivalik Bank, we are optimistic of the 
future now more than ever before. The 
Bank possesses a strong recall for ‘trust’ 
among its customers. Shivalik Bank has 
now become the first UCB to apply for a 
transition to a Small Finance Bank in 
January 2019, ushering in, the next phase 
of growth.

In view of these realities, I am optimistic 
that the Bank is positioned at the cusp of 
an attractive long-term growth journey.

Yashvir Kumar Gupta, Chairman

In an under-penetrated Bharat, 
our prospects continue to be 
attractive, strengthening 
possibilities of a multi-year 
growth journey.
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Expansion 
initiatives during 
the year 

Microfinance:  
Building the 
future of SHGs 

Information security initiatives
The Bank implemented a number of initiatives 
in FY2018-19 to enhance information security of 
all stakeholders. It conducted risk assessments, 
internal vulnerability assessments and patch 
management, enhancing their awareness of 
potential threats and suitable risk minimisation 
initiatives. It enhanced data security by 
implementing various security solutions to 
protect data against theft or the accidental 
disclosure of confidential information. 

New branches
The Bank significantly 
deepened its footprint over 
the past couple of years. 
From 21 operating branches 
in FY2016-17, the Bank had 
grown to 31 operating 
branches by March 31, 
2019. In the last financial 
year, the Bank opened 
branches in Ujjain (Madhya 
Pradesh) and Sardhana 
(Uttar Pradesh).

CBS Platform
The Bank commenced the 
migration of the Core 
Banking Solution (CBS) 
platform to Finacle by 
Infosys. This change was 
incorporated in a bid to 
enhance customer 
experience and 
productivity. The journey 
concluded with a successful 
migration in April 2019.

Mobile and 
Internet Banking 
applications
The Bank launched an 
updated mobile and 
internet banking 
application with enhanced 
features focusing on 
improving the customer 
experience. The new mobile 
application is compatible 
on iOS and Android 
platforms.  

Third party tie-ups
The Bank has tie-ups with the National Housing 
Board for offering loans through the Credit-
Linked Subsidy Scheme (CLSS). It also allied with 
New India Assurance Limited to provide general 
insurance policies to all clients. The Bank tied up 
with National Electronic Repository Limited 
(NERL) for approving loans against warehousing 
receipts. 

Initiatives taken during 2019

In numbers 

As on March 31, 2019

11,590
Total number of groups

9,371
Total groups that received lending

61.90
Loans outstanding under 

microfinance (B crore)

State Districts Blocks Groups formed Groups financed

Saharanpur 10 6062 5313

Meerut 12 3768 2781

Ghaziabad 1 426 313

G.B. Nagar 2 852 728

Hapur 1 307 272

Uttar Pradesh

State Districts Blocks Groups formed Groups financed

Indore 1 332 193

Dhar 1 502 488

Khargone 1 249 139

Ujjain 1 116 75

Dewas 1 155 86

Madhya Pradesh
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Customer testimonials 
and success stories

“Humein bas 
mehnat 
karni hai, 
loan Shivalik 
Bank dega. 
Main abhi ek 
dukaan ki 
maalkin 
hoon aur 
dastakhat 
karna bhi 
seekh gayi. 
Bhagwan 
kare ke 
Shivalik Bank 
ki aur bhi 
tarakki ho.”

“ Hum apne 
pairon pe 
khare huye 
hain Group ke 
kaaran, aur 
isme Shivalik 
Bank ka bahut 
bada haath 
hai”

A | SHG success story A | SHG success story

Sudesh Sharma
Raja SHG, Noida

Fatma
Khvaja Mahila Swyam Sahayta Samuh, Deoband

I am Sudesh Sharma, a member of Raja 
Mini SHG. My husband was the only 
earning member in my family of five 
people. This reality changed a year ago 
when I came to know about Shivalik 
Bank’s SHG Scheme for women. 

The field staff of Shivalik Bank visited my 
village and educated our group members 
about group lending. Thereafter, with the 
help of five members and our Block 
Co-ordinator, we opened our group’s bank 
account. Each member decided to save 
B50 per fortnight for the first three 
months. Training was provided by the 

Block Co-ordinator, so that we could 
understand the benefits associated with 
savings, loan utilisation, loan repayment, 
livelihoods, etc.

After three months, the Block Co-
Ordinator helped us to get a loan of 
B20,000 sanctioned.  There was no other 
kirana store in my village so what I did was 
unique. 

Now, I am an earning member and 
contribute around B8,000 – B10,000 to my 
family each month. I was searching for a 
livelihood opportunity and I found one. 
My self-confidence has enhanced.

I am Fatma, a resident of Deoband  - a 
town in Saharanpur district Uttar Pradesh. 
Deoband is located about 150 km from 
Delhi. The name of my locality is Kolabasti. 
The primary source of income of the 
residents of Kolabasti is animal husbandry. 

In 2013, a village meeting was held on 
making the participants aware about the 
NABARD scheme, the advantages of Self 
Help Groups (SHGs), credit linkages and 
other such  government schemes. Other 
local concerns of the women were also 
discussed. The discussion helped in 
motivating the women to set up an SHG.

Khvaja Mahila SHG was formed by 10 
women. Each member of the group 
deposited B100 as fortnightly savings. The 
SHG opened a bank account in Shivalik 
Mercantile Cooperative Bank on 
September 26, 2013. The group started 
with an internal loan for each member of 
B5000. 

As a regular member of Khvaja Mahila 
SHG, I  borrowed B5000 for a grocery store. 
My  husband had met with an accident 
and his backbone was fractured. It was 
then that I decided to step forward as the 
guardian of my  family. 

At present, I am an independent 
entrepreneur running my business 
through the help of the SHG. My  
economical condition as well as my  social 
life has seen a badlav. 

I am proud that I could motivate other 
women of the village to follow suit. After 
becoming linked to the SHG the women 
have developed a better understanding 
on a wide range of issues, which has 
brought about a positive change in their 
thinking and behaviour. They have 
become socially and economically 
stronger. As a result of this growth, other 
women of the community have also been 
motivated to form SHGs.
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“Meerut mein 
pehle co-
operative bank 
pe vishwaas 
nahi tha, par 
Shivalik Bank 
ne sab change 
kar diya”

“Hamaari roz-
marra ki zindagi 
mein bahut 
badlaav aaya 
Shivalik Bank ke  
kaaran” 

“Koi dikkat nahi 
hui loan milne 
mein. Bohot 
accha salook 
karte hain 
Shivalik Bank ke 
log humse.”

B | Customer Testimonials B | Customer Testimonials

Anil Prakash Rastogi
Branch – Meerut

Naresh Kumar
Branch- Gangoh

Mohammed Aftab
Branch – Deoband

I have been associated with 
Shivalik Mercantile Co-
operative Bank from day one. 
My entire family, extended 
family and friends are now 
associated with Shivalik. The 
kind of bharosa I have on 

Shivalik is incomparable. The 
best thing about this place is 
the service. Everyone here 
always has a smile on their 
face while serving customers 
and that makes all the 
difference.

I wanted to start a juice corner 
and paan shop for which I 
required a loan. I came in 
contact with one of the 
employees of Shivalik Bank. 
My loan was disbursed quickly 
after the completion of 
necessary formalities. 

After this I took a loan of 
B4,00,000 to open my son’s 

clinic. He is a doctor and 
wanted to start his own clinic. 
This time too Shivalik came to 
our rescue and made our 
dreams come true.

I have repaid the entire loan 
with the earnings from my 
juice corner and my son’s 
clinic.

I took a loan of B5,00,000 from 
Shivalik Bank to open a shop 
for my tailoring business. I was 
not sure which bank to go to 

for the loan and it was then 
that my friend suggested 
Shivalik Bank. I bank with only 
Shivalik Bank now.

“Jitni acchi 
seva hogi, 
utna accha 
kaam hoga.”

Balram Chandra Agarwal
Branch – Khatauli

I am a senior citizen customer, 
associated with Shivalik Bank 
since 2015. I am very satisfied 
with the warmth and respect I 
receive here. Sometimes, if I 

request I also get service at my 
door-step. I started with a 
small fixed deposit, but now I 
depend on Shivalik for all my 
banking needs.
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“Allah Shivalik 
Bank ke logon 
ka bhala kare. 
Aise imaandar 
log aajkal milte 
kahaan hai?”

B | Customer Testimonials B | Customer Testimonials

Mia Mohammad Ahmad
Branch – Sharda Nagar

I was paralysed after a major 
stroke. That made it difficult to 
go to the branch to transact. I 
could not sign the papers as 
my hands shook vigorously. 

Mr.Mohit Sharma from Shivalik 
Bank now comes regularly to 
my house and provides me 
services at my door-step.

“Shivalik Bank 
ne aisi chhaap 
chhodi hai ki 
baaki aur sab 
bank ko 
peechhe 
chhod di hai.”

Paras Ram Aggarwal
Branch – Khatauli

I have always been given my 
due respect as a senior citizen 
customer of Shivalik. I sit in 
one place and their executives 
do the work for me. I do not 
need to move to different 

counters. In contrast to PSU 
banks, all employees take 
great pains to solve customers 
problems, I highly appreciate 
this.

“Shivalik Bank 
waale 
customer ki 
izzat karna 
jaante hai.”

Yogesh Kumar Singhal
Branch – Ansari Road

I  remember how after I had an 
accident and fractured my 
foot, I was unable to physically 
visit the branch. A branch 
official used to come to my 

home regularly to take care of 
my banking transactions. I am 
happy with the the customer 
service at the Bank.

“Shivalik Bank 
mein seedhe 
branch 
manager se 
baat ho jaati hai 
jo aur banks 
mein possible 
nahin hai.”

Gagan
Branch – Gangoh

I came to know about Shivalik 
Bank through a friend. My 
family already owned a kirana 
store, but I wanted to get into 

the soft drinks business. I took 
a loan of B5,00,000 to launch 
this business. The business is 
doing well.
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Board of Directors

Senior Management Team

Functional Heads

Business Heads Corporate Secretariat

Yashvir Kumar 
Gupta
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Ankit Khare
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Ankit Garg
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Shruti Pandey
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Ruchi Kashyap
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Sarvesh Singhal
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C. P. Agarwal
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Shiv Puran Gulati
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Gaurav Kumar 
Gupta
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Deependra Verma 
Cluster Head, MP  
(w.e.f. April 1, 2019)

Sahil Joshi
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Gupta
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Gaurav Mittal
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Sudhakar Agarwal
Director

Gyanendra Bajpai
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Divya Sethi
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Sarul Chaudhary
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Arun Kumar Malik
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Harsh Mittal, CA
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Officer 

Vijay Kumar 
Dhingra
Director

P. K. Gupta
Audit

Himanshu Garg
Cluster Head, 
Saharanpur II

Smriti Baliga
Human Resource 

Satyasheel Rao 
Pawar
Director

Navleen Kundra
Chief Risk Officer 
(w.e.f. April 15, 2019)

Sanjay Gupta, CA
Director

Pradeep Shukla
Compliance

Sandeep Ratra
Cluster Head, NCR 
(w.e.f. June 1, 2019)

Vijay Agarwal
Microfinance

Suveer Kumar 
Gupta
MD & CEO

Dr. Sanjeev Mittal
Director

Ravi Ratnaker 
Singh
Operations

Vishal Kaushik
Administration

32   |  Shivalik Mercantile Co-operative Bank Ltd. Annual Report 2018-19   |  33



Employees

At Shivalik, we possess a team of 
dedicated professionals who provide 
the best customer service. Our aim is 
to nurture talent and provide holistic 
development. To achieve this goal 
there is a greater emphasis on linking 
learning with performance. Learning 
is provided through the identification 
of employee objectives, resulting in 
formal and informal learnings, 
leading to a clear pathway to success.

We are proud that some core 
functions such as Human Resources, 
Learning and Development, 

Customer Services, and Credit 
Appraisal have female colleagues 
who make up the majority of the 
talent in these departments, 
positioning us as the employer of 
choice for women. At Shivalik, we 
promote women leaders for senior 
managerial roles, through the 
development of appropriate 
programmes to help them through 
their career lifecycle, building a 
balanced gender ratio across 
organisational levels.
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During the financial year under review, the deposits of our bank 
increased to H1,051.20 Crores registering a growth of 10.3% as 
compared to prior year. Advances increased to H715.24 crore 
registering a growth of 16.9% as compared to the last financial 
year. As a result, the Credit – Deposit (CD) Ratio of the bank 
increased over the year and highlights the strength of the bank’s 
loan sourcing capabilities. The total business size of the bank grew 
by over H200 Crores during FY 2018-19 which is one of the highest 
in absolute terms in the history of the bank.

Net Profit (after tax and provisions) has increased to H3.85 crore 
which represents a growth of 21.6% as compared to the previous 
financial year. This is driven by a growth in net interest income 
which represents long term sustainable income generation driven 
by the growth in the loan portfolio. Gross NPA reduced to less 
than 2% which highlights the quality of the loan book that has 
been built by our team.

The Bank had opened 8 new branches in FY 2017-18 and 2 new 
branches during the year under review. The branches have shown 
tremendous improvement during FY 2018-19 as compared to the 
prior year by reducing the average monthly loss by 2/3rds over 
the course of the year. A large majority are expected to turn 
profitable in 2019-20.

The expense ratio of the bank has increased owing to the increase 
in spend on a number of initiatives such as learning and 
development, technology upgrade, geographical expansion and 
implementing safeguards in relation to information security. 
However, these are all transient in nature and are expected to 
deliver significant benefits to our customers and employees in the 
future as the business expands. This investment will ensure that 
Shivalik remains ahead of the curve for years to come and the 
expense ratio is expected to normalise in the time ahead.

Capital Raising & Capital Adequacy Ratio (CRAR)
During the year under review, the Bank has issued 11,63,900 
equity shares of H100 each aggregating to H11.63 crore. Post 
allotment of aforesaid equity shares, the subscribed capital of the 
Bank stands at H57.33 crore comprising of 57,33,723 equity shares 
of H100 each as on March 31, 2019.

The Bank is well capitalized with a Capital Adequacy Ratio of 
13.07% as at March 31, 2019; of which Tier I Capital was H76.63 
crore and Tier II Capital was H11.64 crore.

Dividend
The Bank has been profitable since inception and has a consistent 
track record of rewarding its shareholders by way of dividends. 
The Board of Directors is pleased to recommend a dividend of H8 
per equity share for the year ended March 31, 2019 subject to 
approval of the Shareholders at 22nd Annual General Meeting (PY: 
H8 per equity share).

Transfer to Reserves
As per the requirement of RBI Regulations and in accordance with 
provisions of section 63 of the Multi States Co-Operative Societies 

Act, 2002 & Bye Laws of the Bank, the Bank has transferred the 
following amounts to various reserves during the Financial Year 
ended March 31, 2019:

Amount transferred to Amount  
(H in Crore)

Statutory Reserve 0.96

Investment Fluctuation Reserve (0.86) 

Special Reserve u/s 36(1)(viii) of Income 
Tax Act

(0.50) 

Contingency Reserve 0.38

Provision on Standard Assets 0.40 

Co-operative Education Fund (CEF) 0.04

Issuance of Long-Term Subordinated Deposit (LTD)
During the period under review, the Bank has raised H7.82 crore in 
the form of Long-term Subordinated Deposit which has a maturity 
duration of seven (7) years in accordance with guidelines issued 
by the RBI and Central Registrar of Co-operative Societies.

Operational Highlights
The bank’s departments led by a strong, stable and committed 
management team have continued the bank’s vision towards 
building a sustainable enterprise which delivers risk managed 
growth for all stakeholders. Technological advancements remain 
at the core of the future of Shivalik and with a view to be able to 
offer the best products and services to our customers, the Bank 
had initiated a project to migrate its Core Banking Solution (CBS) 
to Finacle powered by Infosys in early 2018. Finacle is an industry 
leading solution which is preferred by banks in India and around 
the world and its capabilities to integrate with a host of digital 
channels through an open API framework offer endless 
possibilities on the future of banking at Shivalik. The scale of the 
change is enormous as changing core banking platforms requires 
co-ordination with a number of stakeholders with data accuracy 
being of prime concern. We are pleased that the bank went live 
on Finacle CBS on April 29, 2019 which capped off a large and 
successful project for the bank, one which should positively alter 
the course of its future.

On other digital enhancements, the bank upgraded its Loan 
Origination System in order to streamline loan processing and 
appraisals, extended paperless account opening to further 
account types and obtained direct membership of the National 
Financial Switch (NFS) from NPCI for payment transactions such as 
e-commerce, ATM and POS. Combined with being a direct RTGS / 
NEFT member and a CCIL membership, the bank is well positioned 
to grow its payments business and manage its funds in a more 
effective manner.

The bank has also made rapid strides in enhancing its risk 
management framework with further improvements to risk based 
pricing of Credit proposals, implementation of a Fraud Risk 
Management (FRM) solution for digital transactions and adoption 
of a number of information and cyber security initiatives including 

Directors’ Report

Dear Shareholders,

The Board of Directors take great pleasure in presenting the 22nd 
Annual Report on the business and operations of your Bank, 
together with the Audited Statement of Accounts for the year 
ended March 31, 2019.

Macroeconomic Trends
The economic impact from the implementation of demonetisation 
and GST roll out had been significant enough to alter the trajectory 
of the Indian economy, albeit, temporarily. The year in review, 
2018-19, showed signs of recovery as everyone from large 
business houses to MSME retailers began to conform to the 
government’s reform agenda. In addition, several steps were 
taken to ease credit flow to small businesses, safeguard customer 
data through promulgation of guidelines in relation to storage of 
Aadhar data and improve the performance of the country on the 
ease of doing business index. Digital transactions have been a 
particular focus of the government and aided by NPCI, 
revolutionary products such as UPI and IMPS have transformed 
the digital payments landscape.

The government bond yields had also started to recover in the 
wake of stronger GDP growth, however, impacts from the default 
of IL&FS and continued recognition of NPAs by the banking sector 
led to an overall slowdown of credit especially in the second half 
of FY 2018-19. Global trade tensions emanating due to US-China 
trade concerns, Brexit negotiations and a general slowdown in 
global economies was all beginning to impact investor sentiment 
globally. Global investors were also concerned by the escalation of 
tensions between India and Pakistan in the aftermath of the 
Pulwama incident and awaited the outcome of the largest 
democratic vote in the history of the world in May 2019.

As a result, the year was a challenging one which tested the Indian 
banking and financial services sector throughout especially due 
to the impact on customer services by the severe liquidity crunch 
faced by a number of NBFCs. Amidst this challenging time, 
Shivalik’s team continued working hard and have delivered a 
strong set of results with sustained growth in key metrics.

Financial Performance
The financial highlights for the year under review vis-à-vis last year, 
are presented below:

Particulars FY 2018-19 FY 2017-18
Deposits 1051.20 953.39

Borrowings 7.82 0.00

Advances 715.24 611.61

Investment 246.30 227.85

Interest Earned 104.92 99.03

Other Income 10.58 7.25

Total Income 115.5 106.28

Interest Expenses 61.39 59.69

Operating expenses 49.23 41.09

Provisions & Contingencies/Taxes 1.03 2.34

Total Expenses 111.65 103.12

Net Profit for the year 3.85 3.17

Net NPA 8.47 8.85

(Amount H in Crore)
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the purchase of a cyber insurance risk cover. We are pleased that 
the bank was able to secure this cover prior to the security incident 
at Cosmos Bank and it highlights the risk management philosophy 
that is embedded throughout the organisation.

Our people are at the core of the services we offer and the 
organisation continues to develop its talent management 
capabilities with each passing year. Learning and development 
has been a key focus area for the organisation and all teams are 
focusing on skill development and expanding their knowledge 
base. This has a strong positive impact on our customer service, 
employee engagement and attrition management goals.

It is well documented that Shivalik had received support from 
various stakeholder groups to migrate to a commercial bank and 
it is with great delight that we inform you that Shivalik Bank 
became the first urban co-operative in the country to make an 
application for transition to a Small Finance Bank under the 
guidelines released by the RBI for “Voluntary Transition of Primary 
(Urban) Co-operative Banks (UCBs) into Small Finance Banks 
(SFBs)” on September 27, 2018. The application was made in 
January 2019 and is under consideration by the regulatory 
authorities.

Initiatives taken by various departments
During the financial year under review, a list of the key achievements and initiatives of each department are shown below:

Administration - Introduction of a dedicated software for digitizing the purchase process including vendor registration, quotes 
comparison, PO generation, invoice submission and payment processing.

- Use of Microsoft Power BI analytics for budget and expense monitoring.

- Conducted Fire & Safety drills for all branches to ensure a safe work environment.

- Enhancements to internal policy framework on CCTV recording monitoring, ATM operations on Weekend and 
Holidays, Security arrangements and others.

Compliance - Application to Reserve Bank of India for transition into Small Finance Bank

- Got No Objection Certificate from Reserve Bank of India for NDS-OM membership

- Approval of membership of the Clearing Corporation of India Limited (CCIL)

- Approval for Internet Banking with transactional facility from Reserve Bank of India

Credit - Creation of separate Centralised Credit Appraisal Team Hubs which cater to different clusters reducing the 
overall TAT for loan processing.

- Implementation of Loan Origination System which has increased the speed and accuracy of loan applications 
along with providing the users with an option to check their eligibility for a loan instantly.

- Automatic report generation through LOS has improved performance efficiency of the branches and credit hubs.

- Automation of a number of credit processes in the new Core Banking Solution such as for stock statements, 
NPA marking and collateral management.

- Comprehensive training and implementation of learning techniques for our Credit Personnel to ensure better 
appraisals, decision making and improved compliance of RBI norms

Digital Banking - Received approval for internet banking in ‘Transaction’ mode from the Reserve Bank of India. Earlier, the facility 
was only available in ‘View’ mode to Shivalik customers.

- Direct membership of National Financial Switch and for NACH post approval from NPCI which allow the bank 
to process various payment transactions directly without the need for an intermediary bank.

- NPCI has issued an additional BIN to Shivalik Bank to issue high end (Platinum Cards) to our customers which 
have international acceptance.

- Bank has adopted a new Fraud Risk Management (FRM) solution this year, which helps the bank to monitor 
high risk transactions and in-turn reduce incidences of customer fraud.

- All the old CDM machines have been replaced by new state of the art Cash Recycler machines at our branches 
to provide the best digital services to the customer

- Initiated a project of upgrading Mobile banking and Internet banking along with the migration to Infosys’ Core 
Banking Platform – Finacle.

- Increase in digital banking transaction volume of 26.75% year on year and ranked in the top 20 Co-operative 
banks in the country on transaction volume by NPCI.

Human 
Resources and  
Learning & 
Development

- Introduced employee referral policy to encourage employees to recommend references to join the Bank

- Revamped the internal job posting process to encourage existing employees to apply for new roles

- Improvised the employee engagement activity list with a host of new events 

- Enhanced the recruitment process by including functional tests, panel interviews and psychometric 
assessments

- De-centralised people management making it more inclusive with the participation of all HODs and reporting 
managers

- Automated the new employee joiner process through an internally developed app

- Improved gender diversity by increasing women recruitment from 11% to 11.95% of total workforce

Information 
Technology

- CBS Migration: Bank migrated from FIS Profile to Finacle CBS including an improved Internet Banking and 
Mobile Banking app (iOS/Android) for a better banking experience for our customers

- Strengthened Information Security and IT Risk Management: Roll-out of initiatives like:

• Advanced Anti-virus solution

• Full-drive encryption

• DLP (data loss prevention)

• Active Directory

• Proactive and Preventive Monitoring of the network, servers, and security devices including Firewall to 
safeguard against any intrusions/malware/ransomware

• Internet Access Control policy implementation, restricting access to key data repositories from outside 
office premises.

• Implementation of VPN to allow designated resources to safely access critical data and applications 
beyond office premises for improved mobility

- Back-up connectivity links for Branches with auto-failover for 100% CBS uptime

- Improved complaint management solution: A one-stop-shop to handle complaints across the departments 
including branches.

Insurance - Successfully implemented online tele verification process on an internally developed app.

- Focussed on increasing renewal ratios and development of micro insurance product offerings.

- Corporate agency tie-up with New India Assurance Co Ltd, the biggest General Insurance company of India.

Internal Audit - Initiated projects to improve underperforming branches by avoiding recurring issues and a co-ordinated effort 
with the L&D team to remove understanding gaps of these branches.

- Initiated a project to monitor audit quality through the performance of Quality and Process Review on all 
internal auditors.

Micro-Finance - Real time credit check of SHG customers through integration of CRIF-High mark on our Micro ATMs. This helps 
in borrower selection and reduces processing TAT.

- Biometric attendance marking along with a host of other group management actions on Micro ATMs enhance 
our ability to offer doorstep services to all sections of the society and acts as a key drive to financial inclusion.
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Operations and 
Customer 
Service

- Implementation of Centralised processing and reconciliation of CTS clearing of North and West Grid from 
central clearing team at Noida Head Office.

- CTS process implementation in all branches in the MP cluster.

- Implemented actual T+1-day TAT for Outward clearing release across all CTS hub branches to provide 
superlative customer service, experience and satisfaction.

- Training given to all the branch staffs on FTR (First Time Right) methodologies to improve branch productivity, 
reduce revenue loss and improve customer delight.

- Extensive testing on the new CBS (Finacle) with added benefits, customizations, automations, requirements 
and best in class features to improve service quality and compliance with all regulatory requirements.

- Training sessions (classroom as well as Skype) have been scheduled and provided to all the bank users for 
better understanding and handling of the new CBS software. Subsequently, CBS manual has been created and 
circulated with all the branches for reference and for error-free transactions.

- Significant data cleansing and recovery of charges related to overdues especially on locker rent prior to the CBS 
migration.

- Implementation of Manuals, Policies and Circulars for better understanding of guidelines issued by regulators 
and to comply with them.

- Dedicated a section of the CRM team to enhance the understanding and accessibility of our digital channels 
(mobile, internet, cards and others) with our account holders.

- Dedicated a section of the CRM team for recovery of dues from Microfinance borrowers through a process of 
financial literacy and discipline.

- Implemented ticketing tool system (SMCB Helpdesk) for better monitoring the concerns raised by branch 
users and for timely resolution of issues. It includes an in-built an escalation matrix in case the TAT is breached. 
Furthermore, team has handled PNO/RBI/ Social Media complaints within stipulated time frames.

Treasury - Success in obtaining the Clearing Corporation of India Ltd. (CCIL) membership as an initial and important step 
towards direct NDS-OM (G-Sec trading software) membership through RBI

- Successfully applied for and obtained NDS-OM membership by Reserve Bank of India to enhance trading 
activities

- Initiated the process to procure treasury accounting and portfolio management software for informed decision 
making and treasury portfolio enhancement.

Committees of the Board
The Bank has the following Board level Committees which have 
been established in compliance with the requirements of the 
business and relevant provisions of applicable laws and statutes:

1. Audit Committee

2. Nomination and Human Resource Committee

3. Special Large Fraud Monitoring Committee

4. Board Loan and Share Committee

The details with respect to the composition, terms of reference, 
number of meetings held, etc. of these Committees are given in 
the report on Corporate Governance which forms part of the 
Annual Report.

Number of meetings of the Board and Committees
Regular meetings of the Board and its Committees are held to 
discuss and decide on various business policies, strategies, 
financial matters and other businesses. The schedule of the Board/
Committee meetings to be held in the forthcoming financial year 
is circulated to the Directors in advance to enable them to plan 
their schedule for effective participation in the meetings. Due to 
business exigencies, the Board has also been approving several 
proposals by circulation from time to time.

The Board met seven (7) times during the FY 2018-19 viz. on May 
17, 2018, June 22, 2018, August 7, 2018, October 4, 2018, November 
16, 2018, February 15, 2019 and March 29, 2019.

Additionally, several Committee meetings were held during the 
year including Audit Committee, Nomination and Human 
Resource Committee, Special Large Fraud Monitoring Committee 
and Board Loan and Share Committee which met four (4), two (2), 
one (1) and thirty five (35) times respectively during the year. 
Detailed information on the meetings of the Board and its 
Committees are included in the Report on Corporate Governance, 
which forms part of the Annual Report.

Statutory Auditor
During the financial year under review, the members of the Bank at its 
21st Annual General Meeting held on September 16, 2018 have 
approved appointment of M/s G P Gupta & Co, Chartered 
Accountants, Lucknow as Statutory Auditor of the Bank from 
conclusion of 21st Annual General Meeting till conclusion of 22nd 
Annual General meeting of the Bank in accordance with the 
provisions of RBI Guidelines and Section 70 of the Multi State Co-
Operative Societies Act, 2002 & Clause 63 of the bye-laws of the Bank.

The report given by Statutory Auditors on the financial statements 
of the Bank forms part of this Annual Report. There has been no 
qualification, reservation, adverse remark or disclaimer given by 
the Auditors in their Report. Also, no instance of fraud was 
reported by the Auditors of the Bank.

Whistle Blower Policy / Vigilance mechanism
Strong Corporate Governance is an integral pillar of the way 
Shivalik conducts business. The Bank has adopted an internal 

Code of Ethics & Business Conduct, which lays down the principles 
and standards that govern the actions of the Bank and its 
employees. Any actual or potential violation of the Code, 
howsoever insignificant or perceived as such, would be a matter 
of serious concern for the Bank. The role of employees in pointing 
out such violations of the Code cannot be undermined.

The Bank is committed to adhere to the highest standards of 
ethical, moral and legal conduct of business operations. To 
maintain these standards, the Bank encourages its employees 
who have concerns about suspected misconduct to come 
forward and express these concerns without fear of punishment 
or unfair treatment in line with the stated Whistle Blower Policy.

During financial year under review, the Bank has not received any 
complaints in respect of the aforesaid.

Amendments in Bye-laws during preceding financial 
year
During financial year under review, Bank has made an application 
to Central Registrar of Cooperative Societies for amendments to 
bye-law nos. 6.28, deletion of 28.3 & 58.2.2 and 60.2 which has 
been registered by the Office of Central Registrar of Cooperative 
Societies under Section 11 of the Multi State Cooperative Societies 
Act, 2002 on February 6, 2019.

Disclosure under the Sexual Harassment of Women at 
Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 
2013
The Bank has formulated and adopted a Policy on Prevention of 
Sexual Harassment at Workplace and takes all necessary measures 
to ensure a harassment-free workplace and has instituted an 
Internal Complaints Committee for redressal of complaints. The 
Bank believes that all employees of the Bank including regular 
trainees and those employed on contractual basis at workplace 
including other individuals who are dealing with the Bank have a 
right to be treated with dignity.

During financial year under review, the Bank has not received any 
complaints in view of the aforesaid.
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Corporate Governance Report
1. Philosophy on Code of Corporate Governance
 Corporate Governance is essentially a set of standards, 

systems, and procedures aimed at effective, honest and 
transparent management of a Bank within the applicable 
statutory and regulatory structures. The Corporate 
Governance framework at Shivalik Mercantile Co-operative 
Bank Limited (hereinafter referred as “Shivalik Bank”) takes 
into account the relevant statutory provisions of the Banking 
Regulations Act, 1949 (AACS), Multi State Co-operative 
Societies Act, 2002 and Reserve Bank of India (RBI) directives 
and guidelines issued from time to time.

 Shivalik Bank considers corporate governance as a 
cornerstone of conducting business in an ethical and 
responsible manner which is fair to all the stakeholder groups. 
The following principles are embedded in our governance 
framework:

• Strategic and critical review of the past, current and 
future performance of Shivalik Bank by the Board of 
Directors and its sub-committees.

• Transparent approach to decision making by Executive 
Management and Board.

• A sound system of internal controls to mitigate and 
monitor internal and external risks.

• Accuracy and transparency in disclosures to all 
stakeholders for all material information.

• Compliance of laws, rules and regulations in true letter 
and spirit.

2. BOARD OF DIRECTORS
2.1 Composition
 The Bank is managed by the Board of Directors, which 

formulates strategies, policies and reviews its performance 
periodically. The composition and election of the Board of 
Shivalik Bank is governed by the Multi-State Co-operative 
Societies Act, 2002 and the Byelaws of the Bank. As per the 
Byelaws of the Bank, the maximum strength of the Board of 
Directors shall be twelve directors including two Co-opted 
directors. The Board of Directors are elected by the members 
of the Bank and tenure of Board of Directors is five years from 
the date of their appointment. The election to the Board of 
Directors for tenure 2016-2021 was held on February 14, 2016 
under the supervision of Mr Anil Kumar, who had been 
appointed as a Returning Officer to conduct the election. As 
on March 31, 2019, the Board of Directors comprised 10 
members in addition to MD & CEO of the Bank. The Board 

includes eminent persons including people with 
backgrounds in Accountancy, Audit, Medicine, Law, Taxation, 
Information Technology and Banking. The MD & CEO is the 
ex-officio member of all the committees of the Board.

 Responsibility for day-to-day management of the Bank is 
entrusted with senior management personnel under the 
leadership of MD & CEO who operates under the guidance 
and control of the Board. The Board is responsible for 
reviewing the performance of the bank including steps taken 
by senior management and approving future strategic vision 
with the aim of enhancing stakeholder value.

2.2 Chairman of the Board
 The Board of Directors unanimously elected Mr. Yashvir 

Kumar Gupta & Shri Shiv Puran Gulati as the Chairman & Vice-
Chairman respectively of the Board on February 14, 2016.

 Mr. Yashvir Kumar Gupta, a graduate in Mechanical 
Engineering from IIT – BHU, is the Chairman of the Board and 
founder member of Shivalik Bank, and has been at the helm 
of Shivalik Bank since 1998 turning what was then a small 
start-up bank into close to a H2,000 Crore business with a 
presence in three states having 31 branches currently. He has 
a rich experience of close to five decades in the field of 
trading, agri-business and banking and worked at Hindustan 
Aeronautics Limited (HAL) prior to taking on entrepreneurial 
ventures. Troubled by the poor quality of customer service in 
nationalized banks at that time, he set up the Shivalik 
Mercantile Co-operative Bank Limited in 1998 to provide a 
rich and delightful banking experience to customers.

2.3 Roles & Responsibilities of Board of Directors
 The primary responsibility for good corporate governance of 

the Bank rests with its Board of Directors. The Board has been 
entrusted by the shareholders with the responsibility of 
overall direction, supervision and control of the Bank. The 
Board’s fiduciary responsibility to the shareholders requires 
that the Board should act in their shared corporate interest, in 
good faith, and with due diligence. At the same time, the 
Board should recognise and take into account the interests of 
other stakeholders in the Bank, such as depositors, other 
creditors, employees, the government, and the community 
in which it functions.

 In addition to the Multi State Co-operative Societies Act, 2002 
read with MSCS Rules, 2002 and Bye-Laws of the Bank, Master 
Circular on Board of Directors for Urban Co-operative Banks 
(UCBs) issued by Reserve Bank of India is also applicable to 
the Board of Directors of the Bank mutatis mutandis.

2.4 Board Meetings
During FY 2018-19, Board met seven (7) times during the FY 2018-19.

i. The Bank being a Multi-State Co-operative Society, all Directors are elected by members of the Bank in General Meeting amongst 
themselves except co-opted Directors.

ii. Except Mr. Yashvir Kumar Gupta, Chairman, Dr. Sanjeev Mittal, Director and Mr. Suveer Kumar Gupta, MD & CEO of the Bank, no other 
Directors are related to each other. 

3. BOARD COMMITTEES
The Board has constituted various Committees of Directors to take informed decisions in the best interest of the Bank. These Committees 
monitor the activities as per the scope defined in their Charter and terms of reference. Detail regarding the same are hereunder:

3.1 Audit Committee

Brief Terms of Reference / 
Roles and responsibilities

1. To provide direction and oversee operation of Audit function of the Bank.

2. To oversee Bank’s financial reporting process and disclosure of financial information to ensure that 
the financial statement is correct, sufficient and credible.

3. To review internal and concurrent audit system of the Bank with special emphasis on its quality and 
effectiveness and status of compliance.

4. To recommend appointment & removal of external/Internal auditors.

5. To review related party transactions.

Composition The Committee is headed by Mr. Yashvir Kumar Gupta, Chairman of the Bank. All members of the 
Committee have requisite financial and management experience including a Chartered Accountant. 
Chief Risk Officer and Audit Controller of the Bank are invitees. Other members of management and 
representatives of statutory auditors are also invited to attend and participate in the meetings, whenever 
required. Members of Audit Committee of the Bank during financial year under review are:

1. Mr. Yashvir Kumar Gupta, Chairman

2. Mr. Vijay Kumar Dhingra, Member

3. Mr. Sarvesh Singhal, Member

4. Mr. Sanjay Gupta, Member

5. Mr. Suveer Kumar Gupta, Member

Meetings During financial year under review, four (4) meetings of Audit Committee of Board were held. 

3.2 Board Loan & Share Committee 

Brief Terms of Reference / 
Roles and responsibilities

1. To ensure the compliance of Loan Policy approved by the Board;

2. To consider, approve and sanction all relevant loan proposals;

3. To form different committees of bank functionaries and delegate loan sanctioning powers to them;

4. To consider and approve the waiver and settlement cases of all kind;

5. To approve applications for new membership (Regular and Nominal) for both borrowers and non-
borrowers;

6. To allot shares to new as well as existing members;

7. To approve share refunds and transfers.

Composition Members of Board Loan and Share Committee of the Board during financial year under review are:

1. Shri Yashvir Kumar Gupta, Chairman

2. Shri Shiv Puran Gulati, Vice Chairman

3. Shri Sarvesh Singhal, Member

4. Shri Suveer Kumar Gupta, Member

Credit Head of the Bank is Invitee to the Committee.

Meetings During financial year under review Thirty-Five (35) meetings of Board Loan and Share Committee of 
Board were held. 
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3.3 Special committee of the Board for monitoring Large Value frauds

Brief Terms of Reference / 
Roles and responsibilities

To monitor large value fraud cases with a direct financial impact of H1 Crore and above including 
detection procedures, reporting to regulatory and enforcement agencies and action against the 
perpetrators of the frauds at the highest level.

Composition Members of the Committee during financial year under review are:

1. Mr. Yashvir Kumar Gupta, Chairman

2. Mr. S P Gulati, Member

3. Mr. Sudhakar Agarwal, Member

4. Mr. Sanjay Gupta, Member

5. Mr. Sarvesh Singhal, Member

6. Mr. Suveer Kumar Gupta, Member

Meetings During financial year under review one (1) meeting of Special committee of the Board for monitoring 
large value frauds was held.

3.4 Nomination & Human Resource Committee 

Brief Terms of Reference / 
Roles and responsibilities

To look into the matter of policies related to Human Resource Development. The terms of reference 
include consideration of all issues/areas concerning Human Resource Planning & Management, all HR 
Policies and initiatives.

Composition Members of Nomination & Human Resource Committee of the Board during financial year under review are:

1. Mr. Yashvir Kumar Gupta, Chairman

2. Mr. Vijay Kumar Dhingra, Member

3. Mr. Sarvesh Singhal, Member

4. Mr. Suveer Kumar Gupta, Member

Chief Operating Officer and Chief Human Resources Officer are Invitees of this Committee.

Meetings During financial year under review Two (2) meeting of Nomination & Human Resource Committee were 
held. 

4. OTHER FUNCTIONAL COMMITTEES OF THE BANK
Apart from the above, the Board has delegated its power to MD & CEO of the Bank to constitute such Functional Committees with 
specific terms of reference as it may deem fit from time to time. These include the following:

1) Executive Committee

2) Asset Liability Committee

3) Investment Committee

4) KYC & AML Committee

5) Purchase and Expenditure Committee

Details regarding members along with their designation, frequency of meeting, No. of meetings held during financial year under review 
are presented hereunder:

Sr. 
No.

Name of Executive Committee Name of the members along with 
Designation

Frequency of 
their meeting

No. of Meetings held 
during FY 2018-19

1. Executive Committee Mr. Suveer Kumar Gupta, Chairman
Mr. Harsh Mittal, Member
Mr. Gaurav Mittal, Member
Mr. C P Agarwal, Member

Monthly or as and 
when required

Fourteen (14)

2. Asset Liability Committee Mr. Suveer Kumar Gupta, Chairman
Mr. Gaurav Mittal, Member
Mr. Harsh Mittal, Member
Mr. Ravi Ratnaker Singh, Member
Mr. Gaurav Kumar Gupta Member
Mr. Gyanendra Bajpai, Member

Monthly or as and 
when required

Fourteen (14)

Sr. 
No.

Name of Executive Committee Name of the members along with 
Designation

Frequency of 
their meeting

No. of Meetings held 
during FY 2018-19

3. Investment Committee Mr. Suveer Kumar Gupta, Chairman
Mr. Gaurav Mittal, Member
Mr. Harsh Mittal, Member
Mr. C P Agarwal, Member
Mr. Harish Bhatia, Member
Mr. Joney Roy, Member
Mr. Manish Mahendra, Member
Mr. Pradeep Kumar Shukla, Member

Monthly or as and 
when required

Eleven (11)

4. KYC & AML Committee Mr. Suveer Kumar Gupta, Chairman
Mr. Harsh Mittal, Member,
Mr. C P Agarwal, Member
Mr. Pradeep Kumar Shukla, Member
Mr. Ravi Ratnakar Singh, Member
Mr. Ankit Khare, Member
Mr. Manish Mahendra, Member

Quarterly Four (4)

5 Purchase and Expenditure Committee Mr. Suveer Kumar Gupta, Chairman
Mr. Gaurav Mittal, Member
Mr. C P Agarwal, Member
Mr. Gaurav Kumar Gupta, Member
Mr. Ankit Khare, Member
Mr. Vishal Kaushik, Member

As and when 
required

Thirty (30)

5. GENERAL BODY MEETINGS OF THE BANK
Details regarding meeting of General Body of the Bank held during last three (3) financial year are hereunder:

Year Particulars of 
Meeting

Date, Time & Place Number of Special 
Resolutions 
passed, if any

Nature of Special Resolutions

2016-17

Special General 
Meeting

Date: May 8, 2016
Time: 10:00 am
Place: Regency Garden, Delhi 
Road, Saharanpur, UP

Two (2) i. Approval of proposed scheme of merger 
of R. S. Co-operative Bank Limited, Mumbai 
with Shivalik Bank.

ii. Approve of proposal for inclusion of 
Shivalik Bank in second schedule to the 
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

Special General 
Meeting

Date: March 5, 2017
Time: 10:00 am
Place: Regency Garden, Delhi 
Road, Saharanpur, UP

One (1) i. Amendment to Byelaws of the Bank.

19th Annual 
General Meeting

Date: September 18, 2016
Time: 10:00 am
Place: Hotel Royal Residency, 
Ambala Road, Saharanpur, UP

Two (2) i. Amendments to two (2) clauses of Byelaws 
of the Bank.

2017-18

Special General 
Meeting

Date: July 9, 2017
Time: 10:00 am
Place: Regency Garden, Delhi 
Road, Saharanpur, UP

One (1) i. Amendments to Byelaws of the Bank

20th Annual 
General Meeting

Date: September 17, 2017
Time: 10:00 am
Place: Hotel Royal Residency, 
Ambala Road, Saharanpur, UP

Three (3) i. Amendments to two (2) clauses of Byelaws 
of the Bank.

ii. Conversion to a Commercial Bank as per 
the application submitted to RBI.
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6. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION
 Shivalik Bank being a Co-operative Bank does not remunerate 

its Directors. However, expenses related to travelling and 
lodging are borne by the Bank for attending Board/
Committee meetings. MD & CEO is an employee of the bank 
and for rendering his services to the bank, the remuneration 
paid during FY ending March 31, 2019 was H34,09,873/-.

7. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION
 There were no materially significant transactions with related 

parties including promoters, directors, or relatives of the 
Directors during the financial year under review which could 
lead to a potential conflict with the interest between the 
Bank and these parties. The details of the transactions with 
related parties, if any, were duly placed before the Audit 
Committee of the Board from time to time. There were no 
material individual transactions with related parties, which 
were not in the ordinary course of business of the Bank, nor 
were there any transactions with related parties, which were 
not on arm’s length basis. Suitable disclosure as required by 
the Accounting Standards (AS18) has been made in the 
notes to the Financial Statements. The Board of Directors has 
formulated a policy on materiality of Related Party 
Transactions.

8. WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY / VIGIL MECHANISM
 Strong Corporate Governance is an integral pillar of the way 

Shivalik conducts business. The Bank has adopted an internal 
Code of Ethics & Business Conduct, which lays down the 
principles and standards that govern the actions of the Bank 
and its employees. Any actual or potential violation of the 
Code, howsoever insignificant or perceived as such, would 

be a matter of serious concern for the Bank. The role of 
employees in pointing out such violations of the Code 
cannot be undermined.

 The Bank is committed to adhere to the highest standards of 
ethical, moral and legal conduct of business operations. To 
maintain these standards, the Bank encourages its employees 
who have concerns about suspected misconduct to come 
forward and express these concerns without fear of 
punishment or unfair treatment in line with the stated 
Whistle Blower Policy.

 During financial year under review, the Bank has not received 
any complaints in respect of the aforesaid.

9. CODE OF CONDUCT
 The Board has adopted the Code of Conduct & Ethics for all 

the Employees of the Bank. Code of Conduct and Ethics is a 
statement of the Bank’s commitment to integrity and the 
highest standards of ethical practices. It defines the standards 
of conduct that is expected from all employees in order that 
the right decisions are taken in performing roles and 
responsibilities across various functions in the Bank. The 
Code is intended to be the charter for day-to-day work to 
enable employees to make the right decisions and, therefore, 
serves to:

i. underline the fundamental commitment to compliance 
with regulatory guidelines and laws of the land.

ii. set forth basic parameters of ethical behavior.

iii. establish a system for detection and reporting of known 
or suspected ethical or violations of regulation.

Year Particulars of 
Meeting

Date, Time & Place Number of Special 
Resolutions 
passed, if any

Nature of Special Resolutions

2018-19

21st Annual 
General Meeting

Date: September 16, 2018
Time: 11:00 am
Place: Hotel Royal Residency, 
Ambala Road, Saharanpur, UP

One (1) i. Amendments to Byelaws of the Bank

Special General 
Meeting

Date: October 23, 2018
Time: 11:00 am
Place: Hotel Clark 
International, Ambedkar 
Chowk, Dehradun Road, 
Saharanpur, UP

Three (3) i. Approval for transition to Small Finance 
Bank (SFB) under guidelines of Reserve 
Bank of India

ii. Identification and approval of proposed 
promoters of SFB.

iii. Approval for obtaining NOC from Central 
Registrar of Co-operative Societies
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Independent Auditor’s Report
To, 
The Members,
Shivalik Mercantile Co-operative Bank Ltd., Saharanpur

Report on the Financial Statements
1. We have audited the accompanying financial statements of 

Shivalik Mercantile Co- operative Bank Ltd (PAN- 
AAAAS3251Q) having Registered office at, Ansari Road, 
Saharanpur -247001, which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 
31 March 2019, and the Profit and Loss Account, and the Cash 
Flow Statement for the year then ended as on date, and a 
summary of significant accounting policies, disclosures and 
notes on accounts. Out of 31 Branches, the returns of Head 
Office and its departments and 16 branches audited by us 
and rest of 15 Branches not audited by us but verified by us 
from centralised records maintained by head Office, are 
incorporated in these financial statements. All the Branches 
are covered under Concurrent/ Internal Audit department of 
the Bank. The branches and other departments audited by us 
accounts for 72.35 percentage of Advances, 80.01 percentage 
of deposits, 77.21 percentage of Income and 66.75 
percentage of Expenses.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial 
Statements
2:  Management is responsible for the preparation of these 

financial statements that give a true and fair view of the 
financial position, financial performance and cash flows of 
the Bank in accordance with provisions of the Banking 
Regulations Act, 1949, the guidelines issued by the Reserve 
Bank of India and the guidelines issued by the National Bank 
for Agricultural and Rural Development, the Central Registrar 
of Cooperative Societies, the Multi State Co-operative 
Societies Act, 2002, the Multi State Co-operative Societies 
Rules, 2002 (as applicable) and accounting principles 
generally accepted in India so far as applicable to Banks. This 
responsibility ‘includes the design, implementation and 
maintenance of internal controls relevant to the preparation 
and presentation of the financial statements that are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility
3:  Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial 

statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in 
accordance with Standards on Auditing issued by the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards 
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan 

and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether the financial statements are free from material 
misstatements.

 An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit 
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s 
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material 
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to 
fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor 
considers internal control relevant to the Bank’s preparation 
and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to 
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on effectiveness of the Bank’s internal control. An 
audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of 
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the 
accounting estimates made by management, as well as 
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial 
statements.

 We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion.

Opinion
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to 
the explanations given to us, the aforesaid financial statements 
together with the Notes thereon give the information required by 
the Banking Regulation Act, 1949, the Multi State Co-operative 
Societies Act, 2002 and the Multi State Co-operative Societies 
Rules, 2002 and the guidelines issued by the National Bank for 
Agricultural and Rural Development (as applicable) and guidelines 
issued by Reserve Bank of India and the Central Registrar of 
Cooperative Societies, in the manner so required and give a true 
and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles 
generally accepted in India:

(a) In the case of the Balance Sheet, of state of affairs of the Bank 
as at 31st March 2019;

(b) In the case of the Profit and Loss Account, of the profit for the 
year ended on that date; and

(c) In the case of the Cash Flow Statement, of the cash flows for 
the year ended on that date.

Report on Other Legal & Regulatory Requirements
I The Balance Sheet and the Profit and Loss Account have 

been drawn up in Forms “A” and “B” respectively of the Third 
Schedule to the Banking Regulation Act, 1949 and the Multi 
State Co-operative Societies Act, 2002, the Multi State Co-
operative Societies Rules, 2002.

 As required by Section 73(4) of the Multi State Co-operative 
Societies Act, 2002, we report that:

a) We have obtained all the information and explanations, 
which to the best of our knowledge and belief were 
necessary for the purpose of our audit and have found 
to be satisfactory;

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by 
law have been kept by the Bank so far as it appears from 
our examination of those books and proper returns 
adequate for the purposes of our audit have been 
received from the branches/offices;

c) The transactions of the Bank which came to our notice 
have been within the powers of the bank;

d) The Balance Sheet and the Profit and Loss Account dealt 
with by this report are in agreement with the books of 
account and the returns;

 The reports on the accounts of the branches/offices 
audited by the branch auditors have been forwarded to 
us and have been properly dealt with by us in preparing 
this Report — Not applicable in our case as the Bank has 
not appointed any separate Statutory Auditor for Branch 
Audits. We have reviewed the accounts of all branches 
as well as Head office.

 The accounting standards adopted by the Bank are 
consistent with those laid down by accounting 
principles generally accepted in India so far as applicable 
to Banks;

 In our opinion and according to information and 
explanations given to us, we have not noticed any 
material impropriety or irregularity in the expenditure or 
in the realization of money due to the bank.

 As per the information and explanations given to us and 
based on our examination of the books of account and 
other records, we have not come across material 
instances which need to be reported under Rule 27(3) of 
the Multi State Cooperative Societies Rules,

 Audit Memorandum — NIL

For G.P. GUPTA & Co.,
(Firm Regn. No. 004998C)

Chartered Accountants, Lucknow 
Place : Saharanpur  (Statutory Auditor of the Bank jor the year 2018-19)
Date :15th June 2019  Partner (M.No. 073778)
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Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2019

Particulars SCHEDULE CURRENT YEAR 
31.03.2019

PREVIOUS YEAR 
31.03.2018

 CAPITAL & LIABILITIES
(1) CAPITAL 1 57,33,72,300.00 45,69,82,300.00

(2) RESERVE FUND & OTHER RESERVES 2 21,68,93,301.00 21,24,61,816.00

(3) DEPOSITS & OTHER ACCOUNTS 3 10,51,19,96,779.73 9,53,38,93,269.10

(4) BORROWINGS - 7,82,00,000.00 -

(5) BILLS FOR COLLECTION BEING BILLS RECEIVABLE AS PER 
CONTRA

- - -

(6) BRANCH ADJUSTMENTS - - -

(7) OVERDUE INTEREST RESERVES (ON NPA) - 5,11,16,808.15 4,18,71,888.68

(8) INTEREST PAYABLE (ON TERM DEPOSITS) - 11,07,282.51 10,01,574.51

(9) OTHER LIABILITIES & PROVISIONS 4 13,34,35,561.68 17,82,29,448.88

(10) PROFIT & LOSS 5 4,75,94,588.24 5,06,13,813.96

GRAND TOTAL 11,61,37,16,621.31 10,47,50,54,111.13

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 12 2,92,26,202.00 1,22,23,948.00

 PROPERTY & ASSETS

(1) CASH IN HAND & BALANCE WITH RBI - 18,98,49,430.36 23,30,88,212.77

(2) BALANCES WITH OTHER BANKS 6 93,80,55,704.61 80,90,73,131.70

(3) MONEY AT CALL & SHORT NOTICE - 24,00,00,000.00 56,00,00,000.00

(4) INVESTMENTS 7 2,46,29,81,363.00 2,27,84,59,111.00

(5) ADVANCES 8 7,15,23,51,768.44 6,11,61,09,802.41

(6) INTEREST RECEIVABLE 9 13,38,69,054.46 12,52,55,503.88

 OF WHICH OVERDUE (ON NPA) 5,11,16,808.15 4,18,71,888.68

(7) BILLS RECEIVABLE BEING BILLS FOR COLLECTION AS PER 
CONTRA

- - -

(8) FIXED ASSETS LESS DEPRECIATION 10 32,16,76,052.51 21,76,80,191.49

(9) OTHER ASSETS 11 17,49,33,247.93 13,53,88,157.88

GRAND TOTAL 11,61,37,16,621.31 10,47,50,54,111.13

As per our report of even date attached

For G.P. Gupta & Co. Sd/- Sd/-
Chartered Accountants Suveer Kumar Gupta  Sarvesh Singhal
(Firm Regn. No. 004998C) MD & CEO  DIRECTOR

Sd/-    Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
G. P. Gupta   Sudhakar Agarwal  Shiv Puran Gulati  Yashvir Kumar Gupta
Partner (M. No. 073778) DIRECTOR  VICE CHAIRMAN  CHAIRMAN

Saharanpur: 15th June, 2019

(Amount in H)

Statement of Profit & Loss for the year ended 31st March 2019

Particulars CURRENT YEAR 
31.03.2019

PREVIOUS YEAR 
31.03.2018

 EXPENDITURE
(1) INTEREST ON DEPOSITS, BORROWINGS ETC.

 i) INTEREST ON DEPOSITS 60,99,08,628.53 59,57,50,571.68

 ii) INTEREST ON BORROWINGS 40,31,629.00 11,23,031.50

TOTAL 61,39,40,257.53 59,68,73,603.18

(2) SALARIES, ALLOWANCES, PROVIDENT FUND, BONUS & GRATUITY ETC. 24,08,18,744.10 21,41,66,644.47

(3) RENT, TAXES, INSURANCE, LIGHTING ETC.

 i) BUILDING RENT 4,40,83,775.40 3,71,08,111.50

 ii) TAXES 3,27,340.00 9,14,050.85

 iii) INSURANCE 1,55,10,955.95 1,31,75,621.86

 iv) LIGHTING 1,05,62,407.85 99,93,662.92

TOTAL 7,04,84,479.20 6,11,91,447.13

(4) LAW CHARGES 90,550.00 8,58,123.00

(5) POSTAGE AND TELEPHONE CHARGES

 i) POSTAGE 18,98,828.45 11,37,558.04

 ii) TELEPHONE 6,22,551.74 13,02,827.88

 iii) COMPUTER NETWORKING, CONNECTIVITY & HOSTAGE 2,31,45,325.30 1,29,64,703.42

TOTAL 2,56,66,705.49 1,54,05,089.34

(6) AUDIT & CONSULTANCY FEES 4,38,70,825.85 3,16,09,324.22

(7) DEPRECIATION AND REPAIRS

 i) DEPRECIATION 3,00,07,780.00 1,97,41,370.00

 ii) WRITTEN OFF/ IMPAIRED ASSETS 42.67 (512.10)

 iii) REPAIRS 1,40,21,504.60 1,21,43,070.86

TOTAL 4,40,29,327.27 3,18,83,928.76

(8) STATIONERY, PRINTING AND ADVERTISEMENT

 i) PRINTING & STATIONERY 44,46,521.21 29,75,488.59

 ii) ADVERTISEMENT 31,18,006.80 24,72,301.32

TOTAL 75,64,528.01 54,47,789.91

(Amount in H)
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Particulars CURRENT YEAR 
31.03.2019

PREVIOUS YEAR 
31.03.2018

 EXPENDITURE
(9) OTHER EXPENDITURE

 i) SUBSCRIPTION 1,13,49,628.37 1,02,60,224.65

 ii) AGM & CONFERENCE 6,65,583.80 7,45,797.00

 iii) SECURITY 84,22,599.20 68,00,724.25

 iv) BUSINESS PROMOTION 9,00,119.37 8,92,361.09

 v) STAFF WELFARE 52,46,990.31 44,20,345.25

 vi) TRAVEL & TRANSPORT 1,59,58,152.46 1,31,37,387.85

 vii) COMMISSION ON DAILY DEPOSIT/DSA 50,64,105.68 54,45,571.79

 viii) BANKING CORRESPONDENT EXPENDITURE 13,62,382.50 22,50,661.45

 ix) CHARGES PAID TO OTHER BANKS & NPCI 6,20,379.38 18,27,033.36

 x) AMORTIZATION ON INVESTMENTS 51,01,909.00 43,69,371.00

 xi) INTEREST & PENALTIES 454.00 22,598.00

 xii) PROVISION ON STANDARD ASSETS 39,73,679.00 -

 xiii) MISCELLANEOUS EXPENSES 16,29,382.41 5,70,585.89

TOTAL 6,02,95,365.48 5,07,42,661.58

(10) LOSS FROM SALE OF NON-BANKING ASSETS 1,90,234.00 4,02,476.00

(11) PROVISIONS FOR CURRENT YEAR

 i) PROVISION FOR BAD & DOUBTFUL DEBTS (NPA) 51,00,000.00 -

 ii) SPECIAL RESERVE U/S 36(1)(viii) OF INCOME TAX ACT (50,00,000.00) 12,33,850.00

 iii) PROVISION FOR CURRENT INCOME TAX 1,90,60,988.00 1,35,22,824.00

 iv) PROVISION FOR DEFERRED TAX (4,45,787.00) 23,18,465.00

 v) PROVISION FOR IDR (83,70,369.00) 63,72,269.00

TOTAL 1,03,44,832.00 2,34,47,408.00

(12) PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENTS

 i) PRIOR PERIOD EXPENSES (7,67,556.99) (8,37,438.00)

TOTAL (7,67,556.99) (8,37,438.00)

(13) BALANCE OF PROFIT 3,84,88,157.28 3,16,49,325.63

GRAND TOTAL 1,15,50,16,449.22 1,06,28,40,383.22

EXPLANATORY NOTE:
CONTINGENT PROV. AGAINST DEPRECIATION IN INVESTMENTS 86,20,702.00 31,25,216.00

Statement of Profit & Loss for the year ended 31st March 2019

(Amount in H)

Particulars CURRENT YEAR 
31.03.2019

PREVIOUS YEAR 
31.03.2018

INCOME
(1) INTEREST & DISCOUNT

 i) INTEREST ON LOANS & ADVANCES 79,20,24,126.19 70,77,40,980.18

 ii) INTEREST ON INVESTMENTS 25,05,86,063.15 24,69,00,193.68

 iii) INCOME ON INVESTMENT IN MUTUAL FUNDS 65,59,883.11 3,56,92,980.38

TOTAL 1,04,91,70,072.45 99,03,34,154.24

(2) COMMISSION, EXCHANGE & BROKERAGE 41,40,946.68 11,35,352.74

(3) PROFIT FROM SALE OF NON-BANKING ASSETS 2,98,595.00 1,23,536.50

(4) PROFIT ON SALE OF SECURITIES 1,01,24,818.00 9,78,178.00

(5) OTHER RECEIPTS

 i) LOAN PROCESSING CHARGES 1,80,34,175.11 1,43,33,654.48

 ii) INCIDENTAL CHARGES 1,57,47,731.78 1,13,17,555.29

 iii) LOCKER RENT 36,89,163.67 35,79,905.95

 iv) BAD DEBTS RECOVERED - 20,00,000.00

 v) COMMISSION FROM INSURANCE BUSINESS 1,50,57,016.58 1,20,80,693.61

 vi) MISCELLANEOUS INCOME 3,87,53,929.95 2,69,57,352.41

TOTAL 9,12,82,017.09 7,02,69,161.74

GRAND TOTAL 1,15,50,16,449.22 1,06,28,40,383.22

EXPLANATORY NOTE:
TRANSFERRED FROM INVESTMENT FLUCTUATION RESERVE 86,20,702.00 31,25,216.00

Statement of Profit & Loss for the year ended 31st March 2019

(Amount in H)

As per our report of even date attached

For G.P. Gupta & Co. Sd/- Sd/-
Chartered Accountants Suveer Kumar Gupta  Sarvesh Singhal
(Firm Regn. No. 004998C) MD & CEO  DIRECTOR

Sd/-    Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
G. P. Gupta   Sudhakar Agarwal  Shiv Puran Gulati  Yashvir Kumar Gupta
Partner (M. No. 073778) DIRECTOR  VICE CHAIRMAN  CHAIRMAN

Saharanpur: 15th June, 2019
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S. 
NO.

PARTICULARS CURRENT YEAR 
31.03.2019

PREVIOUS YEAR 
31.03.2018

A Cash Flow  From Operating Activity
Net Profit after tax  384.88  316.49 

Add (Expense side items)

Depreciation  300.08  197.41 

Amortisaton on Investment  51.02  43.69 

Provision for Income Tax  190.61  135.23 

Provision for Deferred Tax  (4.46)  23.18 

Provision for BDDR  51.00  -   

Provision on Standard Assets  39.74  -   

Reserve against Profit u/s 36  (50.00)  12.34 

Provisions & Contigencies (AFS/HFT)  (83.70)  63.72 

Loss from sale of Non-banking Assets  1.90  4.02 

Prior Period Adjustment  (7.68)  488.51  (8.37)  471.23 

Less (Income side items)
Profit on Sale of Investments  (101.25)  (9.78)

Profit on Sale of Non-banking Assets  (2.99)  (104.23)  (1.24)  (11.02)

Adjustment for change in Assets: (Increase)/Decrease
Loan & Advances  (10,362.42)  (5,210.46)

Add: Loans written off during the year  (222.44)  -   

OTS done during the year  (13.63)  (10,598.49)  -    (5,210.46)

Investments  (1,845.22)  1,743.79 

Balances in Fixed Deposits  (1,394.10)  2,257.00 

Add: Amortization on Investments  (51.02)  (3,290.34)  (43.69)  3,957.10 

Income Tax Paid  (294.84)  (278.12)

Add: Refund/ Interest on refund  (10.69)  (305.53)  48.86  (229.26)

Interest Receivable  6.31  (82.10)

Other Assets  (216.65)  (210.33)  (427.40)  (509.50)

Adjustment for change in Liabilities: Increase/(Decrease)
Deposit  9,781.04  3,642.21 

Borrowing  782.00  -   

Other Liabilities  (212.22)  389.77 

Interest Payable  1.06  10,351.87  (12.07)  4,019.91 

Net Cash Generated from operations activity  (3,283.67)  2,804.49 

Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31st March 2019

(Amount in H Lacs)

S. 
NO.

PARTICULARS CURRENT YEAR 
31.03.2019

PREVIOUS YEAR 
31.03.2018

B Cash Flow from Investing Activity
Purchase of Fixed Assets  (1,340.03)  (1,578.91)

Profit on sale of non banking assets  2.99  1.24 

Loss on Sale of Fixed Assets  (1.90)  (4.02)

Profit on Sale of Investment  101.25  (1,237.70)  9.78  (1,571.91)

Net Cash Flow from Investing Activity  (1,237.70)  (1,571.91)

C Cash Flow from Financing Activity
Increase/(Decrease) in share capital  1,163.90  60.28 

Education Fund Paid  (3.16)  (10.03)

Dividend paid (incl. dividend of past years paid)  (376.03)  784.70  (402.40)  (352.15)

Net Cash Flow from Financing Activity  784.70  (352.15)

D Net Increase/Decrease in Cash and Cash Equivalent  (3,736.66)  880.43 

E Cash and Cash Equivalent at the beginning of the yr  10,259.61  9,379.18 

F Cash and Cash Equivalent at the end of the year  6,522.95  10,259.61 

Break-up of Cash and Cash Equivalents  31.03.2019  31.03.2018 
Cash in hand and Balance with RBI  1,898.49  2,330.88 

Balance with Bank in Current Account  2,224.46  2,328.73 

Money at Call and Short Notice  2,400.00  5,600.00 

Total  6,522.95  10,259.61 

Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31st March 2019

(Amount in H Lacs)

As per our report of even date attached

For G.P. Gupta & Co. Sd/- Sd/-

Chartered Accountants Suveer Kumar Gupta  Sarvesh Singhal
(Firm Regn. No. 004998C) MD & CEO  DIRECTOR

Sd/-    Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-

G. P. Gupta   Sudhakar Agarwal  Shiv Puran Gulati  Yashvir Kumar Gupta
Partner (M. No. 073778) DIRECTOR  VICE CHAIRMAN  CHAIRMAN

Saharanpur: 15th June, 2019
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SCHEDULE 1: CAPITAL (Amount in H)

Particulars CURRENT YEAR 
31.03.2019

PREVIOUS YEAR 
31.03.2018

i) AUTHORIZED CAPITAL  1,00,00,00,000.00  1,00,00,00,000.00 
 1,00,00,000 shares of H100/- each
ii) SUBSCRIBED CAPITAL  57,33,72,300.00  45,69,82,300.00 
 57,33,723 shares of H100/- each
 (Previous Year 45,69,823 Shares of H100/- each)
iii) AMOUNT CALLED UP  57,33,72,300.00  45,69,82,300.00 
 On 57,33,723 shares at H100/- each
 Of (iii) above, held by
 (a) Individuals & Others  57,33,72,300.00  45,69,82,300.00 
 (b) Co-operative institutions  -    -   
 (c) Government  -    -   

SCHEDULE 2: RESERVE FUND & OTHER RESERVES (Amount in H)

Particulars CURRENT YEAR 
31.03.2019

PREVIOUS YEAR 
31.03.2018

i) STATUTORY RESERVE 12,89,77,641.00 11,87,47,949.00
ii) INVESTMENT FLUCTUATION RESERVE 1,00,00,000.00 1,86,20,702.00
iii) OTHER FUNDS AND RESERVES
 (a) PROVISION ON STANDARD ASSETS 2,48,18,000.00 2,08,44,321.00
 (b) SPECIAL RESERVE U/S 36(1)(VIII) OF I.T. ACT 1,18,78,316.00 1,68,78,316.00
 (c) CONTINGENCY RESERVE 4,12,19,344.00 3,73,70,528.00

TOTAL 7,79,15,660.00 7,50,93,165.00
GRAND TOTAL 21,68,93,301.00 21,24,61,816.00

SCHEDULE 3: DEPOSIT & OTHER ACCOUNTS (Amount in H)

Particulars CURRENT YEAR 
31.03.2019

PREVIOUS YEAR 
31.03.2018

i) FIXED DEPOSITS
 a) INDIVIDUALS & OTHERS 7,15,10,02,613.61 6,33,86,78,675.84
 b) CENTRAL CO-OPERATIVE BANKS - -
 c) OTHER SOCIETIES - -

TOTAL 7,15,10,02,613.61 6,33,86,78,675.84
ii) SAVINGS BANK DEPOSIT
 a) INDIVIDUALS & OTHERS 2,78,39,86,939.60 2,73,23,19,170.96
 b) CENTRAL CO-OPERATIVE BANKS - -
 c) OTHER SOCIETIES - -

TOTAL 2,78,39,86,939.60 2,73,23,19,170.96
iii) CURRENT DEPOSITS
 a) INDIVIDUALS & OTHERS 57,70,07,226.52 46,28,95,422.30
 b) CENTRAL CO-OPERATIVE BANKS - -
 c) OTHER SOCIETIES - -

TOTAL 57,70,07,226.52 46,28,95,422.30
iv) MONEY AT CALL AND SHORT NOTICE - -
GRAND TOTAL 10,51,19,96,779.73 9,53,38,93,269.10

Schedules to Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2019

SCHEDULE 4: OTHER LIABILITIES & PROVISIONS (Amount in H)

Particulars CURRENT YEAR 
31.03.2019

PREVIOUS YEAR 
31.03.2018

i) BILLS PAYABLE (DDs/POs ISSUED BUT NOT YET
 PRESENTED FOR PAYMENT)

 1,99,98,714.35  3,09,96,475.96 

ii) UNCLAIMED DIVIDENDS  12,77,894.50  31,09,107.00 

iii) SUNDRIES  3,85,73,410.89  4,86,03,204.71 

iv) PROVISION FOR INCOME TAX  1,90,60,988.00  1,35,22,824.00 

v) DEFERRED TAX LIABILITY  99,37,111.00  1,03,82,898.00 

vi) TAX DEDUCTED AT SOURCE  1,10,92,171.76  1,12,79,046.21 

viii) PROVISION FOR AUDIT FEES  3,81,500.00  4,13,000.00 

ix) PROVISION FOR BAD & DOUBTFUL DEBTS (NPA)  3,10,16,389.18  4,95,23,531.00 

x)    PAID-UP CAPITAL (COLLECTION ACCOUNT) OF 
       ERSTWHILE BHOJ NAGRIK SAHAKARI BANK LTD.,
       DHAR, & ERSTWHILE MALWA BANK, INDORE

 17,12,500.00  17,12,500.00 

xi)  CONTINGENT PROV. AGAINST DEPRECIATION IN
      INVESTMENTS (IDR)

 -    83,70,369.00 

xii) CO-OPERATIVE EDUCATION FUND  3,84,882.00  3,16,493.00 

GRAND TOTAL  13,34,35,561.68  17,82,29,448.88 

SCHEDULE 5: PROFIT & LOSS (Amount in H)

Particulars CURRENT YEAR 
31.03.2019

PREVIOUS YEAR 
31.03.2018

i) PROFIT AS PER LAST BALANCE-SHEET 5,06,13,813.96 6,75,11,917.33

ii) LESS: APPROPRIATIONS OF PROFIT FOR LAST YEAR

 DIVIDEND TO SHAREHOLDERS (3,62,72,348.00) (4,02,78,888.00)

TOTAL (3,62,72,348.00) (4,02,78,888.00)

iii) ADD: AMOUNT OF IFR TAKEN BACK TO P&L 86,20,702.00 31,25,216.00

TOTAL 86,20,702.00 31,25,216.00

iv) ADD: PROFIT OF THE YEAR B/F FROM P&L A/C 3,84,88,157.28 3,16,49,325.63

 LESS: PROPOSED APPROPRIATIONS

  STATUTORY RESERVE (96,22,039.00) (79,12,331.00)

  CO-OPERATIVE EDUCATION FUND (3,84,882.00) (3,16,493.00)

  CONTINGENCY RESERVE (38,48,816.00) (31,64,933.00)

TOTAL 2,46,32,420.28 2,02,55,568.63

GRAND TOTAL 4,75,94,588.24 5,06,13,813.96
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SCHEDULE 6: BALANCES WITH OTHER BANKS (Amount in H)

Particulars CURRENT YEAR 
31.03.2019

PREVIOUS YEAR 
31.03.2018

i) CURRENT DEPOSITS

 a) DISTRICT CO-OPERATIVE BANK LTD 3,31,71,185.69 3,47,05,416.89

 b) SBI & SUBSIDIARY BANKS 2,32,18,045.94 7,02,44,570.56

 c) OTHER PUBLIC SECTOR BANKS 16,49,10,881.00 12,21,55,440.04

 d) OTHER SCHEDULED BANKS 11,45,935.98 57,67,704.21

TOTAL 22,24,46,048.61 23,28,73,131.70

ii) SAVINGS BANK DEPOSITS - -

iii) FIXED DEPOSITS

 a) DISTRICT CO-OPERATIVE BANK LTD. - -

 b) SBI & SUBSIDIARY BANKS - -

 c) OTHER PUBLIC SECTOR & SCHEDULED BANKS 71,56,09,656.00 57,62,00,000.00

TOTAL 71,56,09,656.00 57,62,00,000.00

GRAND TOTAL 93,80,55,704.61 80,90,73,131.70

SCHEDULE 7: INVESTMENTS (Amount in H)

Particulars CURRENT YEAR 
31.03.2019

PREVIOUS YEAR 
31.03.2018

i) IN CENTRAL & STATE GOVERNMENT SECURITIES 2,46,05,09,363.00 2,27,59,87,111.00

 MARKET VALUE: 2,43,44,77,750.00 2,22,28,60,650.00

 FACE VALUE: 2,43,75,00,000.00 2,24,25,00,000.00

ii) OTHER TRUSTEE SECURITIES - -

iii) SHARES IN CO-OPERATIVE INSTITUTIONS - -

iv) OTHER INVESTMENTS 24,72,000.00 24,72,000.00

GRAND TOTAL 2,46,29,81,363.00 2,27,84,59,111.00

SCHEDULE 8: ADVANCES (Amount in H)

Particulars CURRENT YEAR 
31.03.2019

PREVIOUS YEAR 
31.03.2018

i) SHORT TERM LOANS, CASH CREDITS OVERDRAFTS AND BILLS 
DISCOUNTED

2,78,37,89,324.19 2,46,29,26,611.82

 •  OF WHICH SECURED AGAINST:

  a)  GOVT. & OTHER APPROVED SECURITIES - -

  b)  OTHER TANGIBLE SECURITIES 2,78,37,89,324.19 2,46,29,26,611.82

 • OF THE ADVANCES, AMT. DUE FROM INDIVIDUALS 2,78,37,89,324.19 2,46,29,26,611.82

 • OF THE ADVANCES, AMOUNT OVERDUE 3,76,37,511.61 7,39,89,318.74

 • CONSIDERED BAD & DOUBTFUL OF RECOVERY 42,58,502.41 2,36,00,206.88

  (FULLY PROVIDED FOR)

Schedules to Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2019

Particulars CURRENT YEAR 
31.03.2019

PREVIOUS YEAR 
31.03.2018

ii) MEDIUM TERM LOANS 23,72,28,022.12 27,05,73,387.98

 • OF WHICH SECURED AGAINST:

  a) GOVT. & OTHER APPROVED SECURITIES - -

  b) OTHER TANGIBLE SECURITIES 23,72,28,022.12 27,05,73,387.98

 • OF THE ADVANCES, AMT. DUE FROM INDIVIDUALS 23,72,28,022.12 27,05,73,387.98

 • OF THE ADVANCES, AMOUNT OVERDUE 2,80,63,671.19 2,29,64,472.66

 •  CONSIDERED BAD & DOUBTFUL OF RECOVERY 16,09,222.72 26,13,060.11

  (FULLY PROVIDED FOR)

iii) LONG TERM LOANS 4,13,13,34,422.12 3,38,26,09,802.60

 • OF WHICH SECURED AGAINST:

  a) GOVT. & OTHER APPROVED SECURITIES - -

  b) OTHER TANGIBLE SECURITIES 4,13,13,34,422.12 3,38,26,09,802.60

 • OF THE ADVANCES, AMT. DUE FROM INDIVIDUALS 4,13,13,34,422.12 3,38,26,09,802.60

 • OF THE ADVANCES, AMOUNT OVERDUE 6,14,72,876.17 4,28,43,549.83

 • CONSIDERED BAD & DOUBTFUL OF RECOVERY 22,98,103.94 -

  (FULLY PROVIDED FOR)

GRAND TOTAL 7,15,23,51,768.44 6,11,61,09,802.41

SCHEDULE 9: INTEREST RECEIVABLE (Amount in H)

Particulars CURRENT YEAR 
31.03.2019

PREVIOUS YEAR 
31.03.2018

i) INTEREST RECEIVABLE ON INVESTMENTS (ACCRUED)

 a) GOVERNMENT SECURITIES 3,96,19,550.22 3,63,80,199.00

 b) BANK FDRs 4,00,62,628.09 4,52,83,086.20

 c) OTHER INVESTMENTS 30,70,068.00 17,20,330.00

TOTAL 8,27,52,246.31 8,33,83,615.20

ii) INTEREST RECEIVABLE ON NPA (OVERDUE) 5,11,16,808.15 4,18,71,888.68

GRAND TOTAL 13,38,69,054.46 12,52,55,503.88

SCHEDULE 10: FIXED ASSETS (INCLUDING WIP ASSETS) (Amount in H)

Particulars CURRENT YEAR 
31.03.2019

PREVIOUS YEAR 
31.03.2018

AS ON 01.04.2018 21,76,80,191.49 7,95,30,623.27

ADDITIONS DURING THE YEAR 13,49,90,390.02 15,86,01,979.52

LESS: SALE/ADJUSTMENTS (9,86,749.00) (7,11,041.30)

LESS: DEPRECIATION FOR CURRENT YEAR (3,00,07,780.00) (1,97,41,370.00)

WRITTEN DOWN VALUE AS ON 31.03.2019 32,16,76,052.51 21,76,80,191.49

SCHEDULE 8: ADVANCES (contd.) (Amount in H)
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SCHEDULE 11: OTHER ASSETS (Amount in H)

Particulars CURRENT YEAR 
31.03.2019

PREVIOUS YEAR 
31.03.2018

i) REFUNDABLE SECURITIES 67,51,810.00 65,78,666.00

ii) STOCK OF PRINTED STATIONERY 64,68,313.37 26,73,008.56

iii) MISCELLANEOUS RECEIVABLES 3,39,77,640.10 4,48,72,625.41

iv) TAX DEDUCTED AT SOURCE 9,84,183.30 8,11,614.35

v) INCOME TAX REFUNDABLE 2,71,35,352.00 1,09,27,430.00

vi) ADVANCE INCOME TAX PAID 2,85,00,000.00 2,70,00,000.00

vii) NON-BANKING ASSETS ACQUIRED UNDER SARFAESI 2,27,40,040.00 2,27,40,040.00

viii) INPUT CREDIT RECEIVABLE UNDER GST 2,04,39,996.16 1,09,94,031.76

ix) STAMP PAPERS IN HAND 2,22,549.00 3,16,873.00

x) ATM & AEPS ACQUIRER RECEIVABLES 2,36,98,555.00 84,73,868.80

xi) EXCESS BALANCE WITH LIC FOR GRATUITY FUND 40,14,809.00 -

GRAND TOTAL 17,49,33,247.93 13,53,88,157.88

SCHEDULE 12: CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (Amount in H)

Particulars CURRENT YEAR 
31.03.2019

PREVIOUS YEAR 
31.03.2018

i) BANK GUARANTEES ISSUED 2,55,48,600.00 93,98,600.00

ii) AMOUNT REMITTED TO RBI UNDER DEAF 36,77,602.00 28,25,348.00

GRAND TOTAL 2,92,26,202.00 1,22,23,948.00

As per our report of even date attached

For G.P. Gupta & Co. Sd/- Sd/-

Chartered Accountants Suveer Kumar Gupta  Sarvesh Singhal
(Firm Regn. No. 004998C) MD & CEO  DIRECTOR

Sd/-    Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-

G. P. Gupta   Sudhakar Agarwal  Shiv Puran Gulati  Yashvir Kumar Gupta
Partner (M. No. 073778) DIRECTOR  VICE CHAIRMAN  CHAIRMAN

Saharanpur: 15th June, 2019

Significant Accounting Policies, Disclosures and Notes on Accounts
(Schedule annexed to and forming part of the Balance Sheet as on 31st March 2019 and Profit & Loss Account for the 
year ended 31st March, 2019)

A)  BACKGROUND AND OPERATIONS:
1. Shivalik Mercantile Co-operative Bank Ltd. was registered in 

1997 under Uttar Pradesh Co-operative Societies Act 1965 
and started operations in September 1998. Later, in 
September 2010, consequent upon the inter-state merger, 
the Bank was re-registered under the Multi State Co-operative 
Societies Act 2002, as a Multi-State Urban Co-operative Bank, 
and expanded its area of operation beyond the entire state of 
Uttar Pradesh (UP) to include area in the state of Madhya 
Pradesh (MP), which comprises five districts in the state, 
namely Dhar, Indore, Ujjain, Dewas and Khargone. 
Subsequently, in FY 2017-18, after receiving due approval 
from RBI, the bank has extended its area of operation to the 
state of Delhi and districts of Dehradun and Haridwar in 
Uttarakhand. Thus, the present area of operation of the bank 
comprises area in four states – UP, MP, Delhi and Uttarakhand.

2. Till the last financial year (i.e. up to 31.03.2018) the Bank had 
twenty-nine branches – twenty five in UP (twelve in District 
Saharanpur, two in District Muzaffarnagar, one in District 
Shamli, two in Meerut, one in District Hapur, two in Ghaziabad, 
three in Noida and two in Lucknow) and four in MP (one each 
in Indore, Dhar, Dewas and Khargone). The bank had earlier 
been granted permission by RBI to open ten branches, seven 
in UP and three in MP. Out of these, eight branches (six in UP 
and two in MP) had been opened in the last financial year 
(2017-18). The remaining two (one each in UP and MP) were 
opened in the month of April, 2018. Thus, the bank has thirty-
one branches at the end of FY 2018-19 – twenty-six in UP and 
five in MP. The Bank provides retail and corporate banking 
services.

3. Merger of Malwa Commercial Co-operative Bank Ltd. 
with our bank:

 Malwa Commercial Co-operative Bank Ltd., Indore, M.P. 
(Target Bank) merged with Shivalik Mercantile Co-operative 
Bank Ltd. (Acquirer Bank) with effect from 1st September, 
2012. In accordance with the scheme of merger, the Share 
Capital of the Target Bank was kept in Collection Account in 
the books of the Acquirer Bank for a period of 1 year from the 
date of merger. On the expiry of the period of one year, the 
balance amount (less, held by borrowers and guarantors) 
remaining in collection account was transferred to the 
General Reserve. As at the end of the current year, only an 
amount of H24,600/- remains in the books of the bank, that 
pertains to share capital held by borrowers and guarantors of 
the above-mentioned bank.

4. Merger of Bhoj Nagrik Sahakari Bank with our bank:
a. Bhoj Nagrik Sahakari Bank Maryadit, Dhar, M.P. (Target 

Bank) merged with Shivalik Mercantile Co-operative 
Bank Ltd. (Acquirer Bank) with effect from 1st November, 
2010. As per the scheme of merger, the Share Capital of 
the Target Bank is being treated as Collection Account in 
the books of the Acquirer Bank and will remain so for a 
period of 10 years from the date of merger. During this 
period any share-holder of the Target bank desiring to 
withdraw his/her shares shall be paid back the amount 
at par. After the expiry of 10 years’ period, the amount 
remaining unpaid shall be converted to the share capital 
of the equivalent amount of Shivalik Bank. The balance 
in the said account as at the end of the year is 
H16,87,900/-.

b. As part of prudent business practice, the non-performing 
loans of the Target Bank which remained unrealized till 
31st March, 2012, were written off as bad debts in the F.Y. 
2011-12. No recovery has been effected in this during 
the current year, despite continuous efforts. Efforts for 
recovery of these loans will continue and recoveries, if 
any, shall be considered as income for the year in which 
the recoveries are made.

(B) SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES:
1. Accounting Convention
 The financial statements have been prepared in accordance 

with the historical cost convention and on a going concern 
basis in accordance with the generally accepted accounting 
principles and the statutory provisions prescribed in Banking 
Regulation Act 1949, the Multi State Co-operative Societies 
Act 2002, circulars and guidelines issued by the Reserve Bank 
of India from time to time, the Accounting Standards issued 
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and 
practices prevailing within the banking industry in the 
country, except as otherwise stated.

2. Use of estimates
 The preparation of the financial statements, in conformity 

with generally accepted accounting principles, requires 
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect 
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, revenues and 
expenses and disclosure of contingent liabilities at the date 
of the financial statements. Actual results could differ from 
these estimates and will be adjusted in the accounts of the 
year in which they arise. Management believes that the 
estimates used in the preparation of the financial statements 
are prudent and reasonable. Any revisions to the accounting 
estimates are recognized prospectively.
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3. Foreign Exchange Transactions
 The bank holds Foreign Exchange Authorized Dealer 

Category-II license and has entered into transactions related 
to exchange/remittance of foreign currency on behalf of 
customers during the year. The income and associated GST 
implications from the above transactions are accounted for 
in the books of the bank. The bank does not have any foreign 
exchange assets/liabilities as on 31 March 2019.

4. Investments
4.1. In accordance with the extant instructions issued by 

Reserve Bank of India for the purpose of valuation of 
Investments, the Bank has classified its Investment 
portfolio as at 31st March 2019 into the following three 
categories:

(a) Held To Maturity (HTM): Investments under this 
category are carried at their book value. Any 
premium on acquisition of a security is amortized 
over the balance period to maturity.

(b) Available For Sale (AFS): Investments in the 
category are valued at market rate and net 
depreciation in the category, if any, is written off as 
expense of the year. Net appreciation, if any, has not 
been recognized in these financial statements.

(c) Held For Trading (HFT): Investments in the 
category are valued at market rate and net 
depreciation in the category, if any, is written off as 
expense of the year. Net appreciation, if any, has not 
been recognized in these financial statements.

4.2. The Investments have been disclosed in the Balance 
Sheet as under:

(a) Government Securities (Book Value, Face Value and 
Market Value)

(b) Other Approved Securities

(c) Shares in Co-operative Institutions

(d) Other Investments

4.3. Market Value of Central and State Government Securities 
is determined in terms of Yield to Maturity method 
indicated by Financial Benchmark India Pvt. Ltd.

4.4. The Amortization of premium on investments in HTM 
category is calculated on the basis of days remaining to 
maturity and the amount of amortization is directly 
debited to the Profit and Loss Account as suggested in 
the RBI guidelines.

4.5. The bank maintains investment related reserves such as 
Investment Depreciation Reserve (IDR) and Investment 
Fluctuation Reserve (IFR) in line with the guidelines of 
the RBI.

4.6. Broken period interest on debt instruments is treated as 
a profit and loss item.

5. Loans and Advances
5.1. The classification of advances into Standard, Sub-

standard, Doubtful and Loss assets, as well as provision 
on non-performing advances has been arrived at in 
accordance with the extant instructions issued by the 
Reserve Bank of India with regard to Income Recognition 
and Assets Classification (IRAC) from time to time and as 
applicable for preparation of this Balance Sheet.

5.2. In addition to this, a general provision on standard assets 
is also made as per the extant instructions issued by 
Reserve Bank of India in the following manner:

Category of Advance 
(Excluding NPA)

% age provision 
made

Advances for Commercial Real 
Estate for commercial use  

1.00%

Advances for Commercial Real 
Estate for Housing needs

0.75%

Advances to agricultural and 
SME sector 

0.25%

Advances against FD, LIC, KVP 
and NSC

Nil

Other Advances 0.40%

5.3. The interest in respect of non-performing advances is 
provided separately under “Overdue Interest Reserve” in 
accordance with the extant instructions issued by 
Reserve Bank of India.

6. Fixed Assets and Depreciation
6.1. Fixed Assets are stated and carried in the Balance Sheet 

at written down value, arrived at cost less depreciation. 
Cost includes incidental expenses incurred on 
acquisition of assets.

6.2. As per applicable accounting standards, the residual 
value and useful life of assets should be reviewed 
periodically and if expectations differ from future 
estimates, this should be considered a change in 
accounting estimates. Change in accounting estimates 
are applied prospectively starting with the current 
financial year and restatement of prior year comparatives 
is not required.

Significant Accounting Policies, Disclosures and Notes on Accounts
(Schedule annexed to and forming part of the Balance Sheet as on 31st March 2019 and Profit & Loss Account for the 
year ended 31st March, 2019)

6.4. Depreciation would be calculated on the basis of the 
number of days that the asset has been put to use in any 
given accounting period.

6.5. Depreciation on assets sold during the year is charged 
up to the date of sale.

6.6. There has been no change in method and rates of 
providing depreciation as compared to the previous 
year.

6.7. No fixed assets were revalued during the year.

6.8. Recognition of other assets: Certain capital expenditures 
made on assets prior to being available for use represents 
‘work in progress’ assets. Depreciation/ amortization of 
these assets would begin once these are available for 
use in line with the applicable accounting standards. 
This includes the expenditure on the migration of the 
bank’s core banking solution (CBS) which was completed 
after the financial year ending 31 March 2019.

7. Revenue Recognition (Accounting Standard AS-9)
7.1. Items of income and expenditure are generally 

accounted for on accrual basis.

7.2. Income from non-performing assets is recognized to the 
extent realized, as per the extant instructions issued by 
Reserve Bank of India.

7.3. Income derecognized on classification of any advance 
account as NPA is recognized as income on subsequent 
actual realization and re-classification of asset as 
standard asset.

7.4. Interest on Government securities, debentures and 
other fixed income securities is recognized on a period 
proportional basis. Income on discounted instruments is 
recognized over the tenor of the instrument on a 
straight-line basis

7.5. Any recovery against advances written off in earlier years 
is considered as income of the year in which the same is 
recovered.

7.6. Interest on overdue fixed deposits is provided at rate of 
interest applicable on savings account in accordance 
with the extant instructions of RBI.

7.7. There are no material prior period items included in 
Profit and Loss account.

7.8. Certain items of income such as Locker Rent, DD 
Commission and others are recognized on cash basis. 
The quantum of such income is not material.

8. Non-Performing Assets
8.1. Non-Performing assets of the bank have been identified 

and provision thereon has been made as per the extant 
instructions of Reserve Bank of India.

8.2. Interest accrued and credited to income on any advance 
which is classified as a Non-Performing Asset at any time 
during the year is reversed to the extent this has not 
been realized.

8.3. Interest accrued on NPA is not shown as income but 
shown as a contra item under the “Overdue Interest 
Reserve” and “Interest Receivable on Advances” in the 
Balance-sheet.

9. Employee Benefits (Accounting Standard AS-15)
9.1. The bank operates a defined benefit plan for its 

employees, viz. gratuity liability. The cost of providing 
benefits under these plans is determined on the basis of 
an independent actuarial valuation at each year-end.

9.2. The bank maintains the fund under trust deed and 
requisite insurance arrangements with Life Insurance 
Corporation of India (LIC) as Employees Group Gratuity 
Scheme. The shortfall, if any, between the present value 
of the benefit obligation and the fair value of plan assets 

6.3. The applicable depreciation methodology on Fixed Assets is mentioned below:

S. No. Asset Category Depreciation Method Useful Life
1 Furniture and Fixtures Straight Line 10 Years

2 Office Equipment Straight Line 10 Years

3 Office Vehicles Straight Line 8 Years

4 Safe, Locker Steel Almirah Straight Line 30 Years

5 Computer Hardware & Software Straight Line 3 Years

6 Temporary Structures Straight Line 3 Years

7 Other assets Straight Line Internal Assessment
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as on 31 March is paid/provided for and recognized as 
expenses in the profit and loss account.

9.3. Bank’s Contribution and Employees’ contribution 
towards provident fund is paid every month to 
Commissioner of Provident Fund in accordance with the 
provisions of Employees Provident Fund and Misc 
Provision Act 1952. Provident Fund contributions are 
made for each individual and the scheme is administered 
by Regional Provident Fund Commissioner (RPFC), as 
applicable. The rate at which the annual interest is 
payable to the beneficiaries by the trusts is being 
administered by the government.

9.4. The Bank’s contribution to provident fund is accounted 
for in Profit and Loss account on the basis of contribution 
to the scheme.

9.5. All earned leaves which are due are paid by the end of 
the financial year.

10. Reserve Fund and Other Reserves
10.1. Dividend remaining unclaimed over 3 years is transferred 

to Statutory Reserve Fund account.

10.2. Nominal Membership and Entrance Fees for Regular 
members are transferred to Statutory Reserve Fund 
every year.

11. Income Tax (AS 22)
11.1. Provision for current tax is made on the basis of 

estimated taxable income for the year.

11.2. Deferred tax is recognized, subject to consideration of 
prudence, on timing difference, representing the 

difference between taxable incomes and accounting 
income that originated in one period and is capable of 
reversal in one or more subsequent periods. Deferred 
tax assets and liabilities are measured using tax rates and 
tax laws that have been enacted or substantially enacted 
by the Balance Sheet date.

12. Goods and Services Tax (GST)
 The Bank has implemented the Goods and Services Tax (GST) 

regime since its implementation on 1 July 2017. The bank has 
collected GST on income from commission, other charges 
and paid GST on operating and capital expenses. The bank 
availed eligible Input Tax Credit as per GST Rules on relevant 
expenses which was utilized for set-off of GST collected on 
income from commission and customer charges. Unutilized 
Input Tax Credit has been carried forward to the next year for 
further utilization.

 Income and Expense on which GST is applicable are 
accounted for on net of eligible GST.

13.  Long Term Subordinated (Tier II) Deposit:
 Accordance to RBI circular no. RBI/2016-17/7 DCBR B.P.D. Cir. 

No. 21/09.18.201/2016-17 and permission of Central Registrar 
Co-operative Societies, Bank has raised H7.82 Cr. in the form 
of Long Term Subordinated (Tier II) Deposit which has a 
maturity duration of seven years. As per the RBI guidelines, 
this amount is eligible as Tier II capital for the purpose of the 
calculation of the Capital Adequacy Ratio.

 The amount of Long Term Subordinated (Tier II) Deposit and 
Interest paid on thereon has been shown under the head 
“Borrowing“ in the Balance Sheet and “Interest on Borrowing” 
in the Profit and Loss Account respectively.

Significant Accounting Policies, Disclosures and Notes on Accounts
(Schedule annexed to and forming part of the Balance Sheet as on 31st March 2019 and Profit & Loss Account for the 
year ended 31st March, 2019)

(C)  DISCLOSURES AND NOTES ON ACCOUNTS:
1. Disclosure as per the extant instructions of Reserve Bank of India: (Amount in H Lacs)

S.No. Particulars 31.03.2019 31.03.2018
1.1. Capital to Risk Asset Ratio (CRAR) 13.07% 12.68%

A. Capital Tier I 7663.35 6443.21

B. Capital Tier II 1164.74 466.80

C. Total of Tier I and II Capital 8828.09 6910.01

D. Total Risk Weight Assets 67548.99 54500.70

1.2. Movement of CRAR (Basis points) 39 (239)

1.3. Values of Investments are as under:

1) Government /Approved Securities (SLR)

 i) HELD TO MATURITY

  (a) Face Value 22875.00 19715.00

  (b) Book Value 23093.84 20044.58

Significant Accounting Policies, Disclosures and Notes on Accounts
(Schedule annexed to and forming part of the Balance Sheet as on 31st March 2019 and Profit & Loss Account for the 
year ended 31st March, 2019)

S.No. Particulars 31.03.2019 31.03.2018
 ii) AVAILABLE FOR SALE

  (a) Face Value 1500.00 2710.00

  (b) Book Value 1511.25 2715.29

  (c) Market Value 1565.60 2627.14

 iii) HELD FOR TRADING

  (a) Face Value - -

  (b) Book Value - -

  (c) Market Value - -

2) Other Investments (Non-SLR)

 i) Shares of Co-operative Institution - -

 ii) Others (Book Value) 24.72 24.72

 iii) Others (Market Value) 28.87 29.17

1.4. Advances against Shares and Debenture NIL NIL

1.5. Advances of H7,15,23.52 Lacs (Previous year H6,11,61.10 Lacs) shown in the Balance Sheet include: 
(Amount in H Lacs)

Particulars FUND BASED NON- FUND BASED

31.03.19 31.03.18 31.03.19 31.03.18
i) Advances against Real Estate, Construction 

Business, Housing
15,176.70 14,543.20 Nil Nil

ii)  Advance to Directors* 29.09 Nil Nil Nil

iii) Advances to Relatives of Directors & Companies/ 
firms in which they are interested*

0.02 11.74 Nil Nil

iv) Advances to Chairman Nil Nil Nil Nil

*All advances to Directors, their relatives and companies/firms in which they are interested are against the security of their own FDRs, as 
explicitly allowed by RBI. 

(Amount in H Lacs)

S.No. Particulars 31.03.2019 31.03.2018
1.6. Average Cost of Deposits 6.17% 6.45%

1.7. a. Gross NPAs 1122.96 1307.91

b. Net NPAs 847.36 884.82

1.8. Movement in NPA

Opening Balance 1307.91 1281.51

Add: Additions during the year 3138.59 2091.83

Less: Closed/ Recovered /Written off 3323.54 2065.43

Closing Balance 1122.96 1307.91

1.9. a. Interest income as a percentage of working funds 9.63% 9.73%

b. Non-Interest income as percentage of working funds 0.97% 0.71%

c. Operating profit as a percentage of working funds 0.48% 0.53%

d. Return on Assets 0.35% 0.31%

e. Business (Deposits + Advances) per employee 365.03 322.68

(Amount in H Lacs)
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S.No. Particulars 31.03.2019 31.03.2018
f. Profit per employee (Before Tax) 1.19 1.12

g. Profit per employee (After Tax) 0.80 0.65

1.10. a. Provision on NPAs required to be made 275.60 423.09

b. Provision on NPAs actually made 310.16 495.24

c. Provisions on depreciation in investments required to be made - 83.70

d. Provisions on depreciation in investments actually made - 83.70

e. Provision on Standard Assets required to be made 248.18 208.31

f. Provision on Standard Assets actually made 248.18 208.44

1.11 Payment of DICGC Premium (inclusive of GST) 116.39 107.10

1.12 Arrear in DICGC Premium Nil Nil

1.13.  Restructuring of Advances: (Amount in H Lacs)

Particulars of Accounts Restructured as on 31.03.2019 Housing 
Loans

SME Debt Others

Standard Advances No. of Borrowers - 29.00 -

Amount outstanding - 46.93 -

Sacrifice (diminution of fair value) - - -

Sub-standard Advances No. of borrowers - - -

Amount outstanding - - -

Sacrifice (diminution of fair value) - - -

Doubtful Advances No. of borrowers - - -

Amount outstanding - - -

Sacrifice (diminution of fair value) - - -

Total No. of borrowers - 29.00 -

Amount outstanding - 46.93 -

Sacrifice (diminution of fair value) - - -

1.14. Write-Off of Advances:

Pursuant to the approval of the Board, the bank has written off loans amounting to H222.44 lacs which are categorized as Loss Assets as 
on date. These assets were provided for completely at the time of the write off. The corresponding provision available in the books has 
been adjusted against this write-off. As a result, there is no financial impact in the P&L in the current year from this activity.

2. Related Party Disclosure (Accounting Standard AS-18)
2.1. List of the related parties and their relationship

 Name of the party   Relationship
a. Key Managerial Personnel
 1.  Shri Yashvir Kumar Gupta  Chairman
 2.  Shri Suveer Kumar Gupta  MD & CEO

b. Relatives of the Key Managerial Personnel
 1.  Shri Suveer Kumar Gupta  Son of Shri Yashvir Kumar Gupta
 2.  Smt. Swarn Lata Gupta  Wife of Shri Yashvir Kumar Gupta
 3.  M/s Yashvir Kumar Gupta HUF  HUF of Shri Yashvir Kumar Gupta
 4.  Smt. Shilpa Gupta   Wife of Shri Suveer Kumar Gupta
 5.  Shri Dinesh Kumar Mittal HUF  HUF of brother of Sh. Yashvir Kr. Gupta

Significant Accounting Policies, Disclosures and Notes on Accounts
(Schedule annexed to and forming part of the Balance Sheet as on 31st March 2019 and Profit & Loss Account for the 
year ended 31st March, 2019)

(Amount in H Lacs)
2.2. Details of transactions with the related parties carried out on an arm’s length basis.

S.No. Particulars Relatives of Key Managerial Personnel

31st March 2019 31st March 2018
1. Salary paid 34,09,873 32,95,160

2. Rent paid 65,69,292 63,34,783

3. Leases (Accounting Standard AS-19)
The bank has cancelable operating lease and the disclosures under AS 19 on ‘Leases’ issued by ICAI are as follows:

3.1. Lease rent payments of H452.92 Lacs (inclusive of GST) have actually been made. Out of this 50% of GST (H12.08 lacs) has been taken 
to Input Tax Credit, the balance has been recognized in the statement of profit and loss for the year ended March, 2019 (Previous 
Year: H381.24 Lacs).

3.2. The lease agreements entered into, pertain to use of premises and electricity generator by the bank. The lease agreements do not 
have any undue restrictive or onerous clauses other than those normally prevalent in similar such agreements.

4. Intangible Assets (Accounting Standard AS-26)
Details of Computer Software included in Fixed Assets in accordance with AS-26 on Intangible Assets issued by the ICAI are as under: 

(Amount in H Lacs)

Particulars Amount

Opening balance as on 01.04.2018 47.77

Additions during the year 146.21

Less: Amortization/Depreciation 22.88

Closing balance as on 31.03.2019 171.10

5. Impairment of Assets (Accounting Standard AS-28)
The bank has written off a sum of ‘NIL’ (last year ‘NIL’) to its profit and loss account on account of Impairment of assets.

6. Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets (Accounting Standard AS-29)
6.1. Provisions

(a) As on 31st March 2019, the Bank had an excess provision of H34.56 Lacs on account of Bad Debts and Doubtful Reserve (BDDR).

6.2. Contingent Assets and Liabilities
 (a) Details of contingent liabilities are provided below (Amount in H Lacs)

Particulars 31/03/2019 31/03/2018
Bank Guarantees 255.48 93.99

DEAF (Depositor Education and Awareness Fund) 36.77 28.25

(b) Bank Guarantees are 100% secured against tangible securities. 

(c) Amount related to DEAF has been directly deposited in the specific account with RBI Mumbai.

(d) Amount transferred to DEAF: (Amount in H Lacs)

Particulars 2018-19 2017-18
Opening balance of amounts transferred to DEAF 28.25 11.74

Add: Amounts transferred to DEAF during the year 8.59 16.88

Less: Amounts reimbursed by DEAF towards claims (0.07) (0.37)

Closing balance of amounts transferred to DEAF 36.77 28.25

Significant Accounting Policies, Disclosures and Notes on Accounts
(Schedule annexed to and forming part of the Balance Sheet as on 31st March 2019 and Profit & Loss Account for the 
year ended 31st March, 2019)
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7. Segment reporting (Accounting Standard AS-17):
7.1. Bancassurance: Bank is engaged in selling of insurance policies as an authorized corporate agent, as permitted by RBI, for the 

following insurance companies:

 • General Insurance – New India Assurance Co. Ltd. and Bajaj Allianz General Insurance Co. Ltd.

 • Life Insurance – Life India Corporation of India and Bajaj Allianz Life Insurance Co. Ltd.

 • Health Insurance – Star Health and Allied Insurance Co. Ltd.

7.2. The details of the commission income received is shown below: (Amount in H Lacs)

S. No. Types of Insurance Name of Insurer Commission Income 
for FY 2018-19

1. Life Life Insurance Corporation of India 43.18

2. Life Bajaj Allianz Life Insurance Co. Ltd 69.31

3. Health Star Health and allied Insurance Co. Ltd. 21.31

4. General ICICI Lombard General Insurance Co. Ltd. -

5. General Oriental Insurance Co. Ltd. 0.96

6. General Bajaj Allianz General Insurance Co. Ltd. 15.34

7. General New India Assurance Co. Ltd. 0.47

TOTAL 150.57

 The commission earned from insurance business during the year is H150.57 Lakhs (Previous Year: H120.81 Lacs).

8. Taxation
8.1. Income Tax

 Bank has filled income tax returns since inception and all assessments other than for past two years have been completed till date. 
The return for AY 2017-18 has been taken up for scrutiny by the department and Income Tax Department has released refund order 
u/s 143(i) of Income Tax Act 1961, however, the refund has not been received as at 31 March 2019. Other than the refund for last 
year, refunds of H11.74 lacs pertaining to past years are due from the Income Tax Department. Out of this amount, an amount of 
H8.60 lacs is yet to be reflected in Form 26AS as TDS deducted on certain items of income.

8.2. Deferred Tax Liability

 Details pertaining to the movement of deferred tax liability in the current financial year are presented below

(Amount in H Lacs)

Deferred Tax Liability Due to 
Depreciation

Due to creation of Reserve 
U/s 36(1)(viii) of IT Act

Due to Gratuity 
payment

Total

For period up to 31st March, 2018 32.90 58.41 12.52 103.83

For the year 2018-19 10.93 (16.90) 1.51 (4.46)

As on 31st March, 2019 43.83 41.51 14.03 99.37

Significant Accounting Policies, Disclosures and Notes on Accounts
(Schedule annexed to and forming part of the Balance Sheet as on 31st March 2019 and Profit & Loss Account for the 
year ended 31st March, 2019)

9. Investments Related Disclosures:
9.1. Details of Non-SLR investments as at 31 March 2019: (Amount in H Lacs)

S. No. Issuer Amount Extent of ‘below 
investment 

grade securities’

Extent of 
‘unrated 

securities’

Extent of 
‘unlisted 

securities’

1. PSUs (NHAI) 24.72 - - -

2. FIs - - - -

3. Public Sector Banks - - - -

4. Mutual Funds - - - -

5. Others - - - -

6. Provision held towards Depreciation - - - -

9.2. Non-SLR Investments of the bank comprise of the following items as at 31 March 2019: (Amount in H Lacs)

S.No. Particulars Amount

FY 2018-19 FY 2017-18
1. 8.30% Tax-free Bonds issued by NHAI. 24.72 24.72

TOTAL 24.72 24.74

 (a) All the investments under this head are within limits defined as per the extant instructions of RBI.

 (b) Investments under this head have been valued at the lower of book value and market value.

 (c) Non-performing non-SLR investments are Nil.

9.3. As on 31st March, 2019, NIL Mark to Market loss has been calculated during the valuation of investments held under the AFS 
category. As on March 31, 2019 the bank was not required to make any provision for Investment Depreciation Reserve. As such, the 
amount of H83.70 Lacs, already outstanding in IDR was written back to Profit and Loss Account, and an equivalent amount, net of 
Income Tax and Statutory Reserve contribution, was appropriated to IFR, as per extant RBI guidelines. The details of the transactions 
are as follows: (Amount in H Lacs)

S.No. Particulars Amount

1. Investment Depreciation Reserve as on 31 March, 2019 83.70

2. Investment Depreciation Reserve required -

3. Excess Investment Depreciation Reserve, written back to P&L 83.70

4. Income Tax requirement on this amount (29.25)

5. Statutory Reserve requirement on this amount (13.61)

6. Net amount appropriated back to P&L 40.84

9.4. Investment Fluctuation Reserve (IFR) is being created as per the instructions of the RBI. The bank is required to maintain an IFR for 
an amount representing at least 5% (up to a maximum of 10%) of the book value of investments held under AFS and HFT categories 
as at the end of the financial year. The bank held an IFR of H227.05 Lacs as on 31 March 2019 (after due appropriation from P&L, 
consequent to transfer of excess IDR to P&L, as described in point 9.3) which was in excess of the required amount. As per the RBI 
guidelines, excess amounts may be transferred to the Profit and Loss Account. Details are given below.

Significant Accounting Policies, Disclosures and Notes on Accounts
(Schedule annexed to and forming part of the Balance Sheet as on 31st March 2019 and Profit & Loss Account for the 
year ended 31st March, 2019)
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9.5. Since the Bank had excess IFR funds available for use, the excess amount has been transferred back to Profit and Loss Account. The 
position of the IFR as on 31 March 2019 is as follows: (Amount in H Lacs)

S.No. Particulars Amount

1. Investment Fluctuation Reserve as on 31 March, 2019 186.21

2. Amount to be appropriated from P&L, consequent to transfer of excess IDR to P&L   40.84

3. Final Investment Fluctuation Reserve as on 31 March, 2019 227.05

4. Investment Fluctuation Reserve required (5%) 76.80

5 Total IFR maintained as on 31 March, 2019 100.00

6 IFR written back to P&L surplus account 127.05

7. Excess Investment Fluctuation Reserve maintained 23.20

9.6. Shifting of Investments between categories: The Bank had transferred investment securities between HTM and AFS categories (and 
vice versa) once in FY 2018-19 which is line with the guidelines prescribed by the RBI. The amount of securities transferred were 
H18.41 Crores from HTM to AFS (Prior Year: H61.45 Crores) and H20.44 crores from AFS to HTM (Prior Year: Nil).

10. Borrowings (Against Fixed Deposit)
The Bank has taken overdraft limits from other banks, against the security of its Fixed Deposits in these banks, to meet short term liquidity 
requirements during the year. The details of the limits sanctioned are as under. No limit was availed as on 31.03.2019.

(Amount in H Crores)

S.No. Name of Bank from which limit has been availed Limit Amount Amount of FDRs pledged 
to secure the limit 

1. IDBI Bank 5.34 12.88

2. Equitas Small Finance Bank 6.30 19.00

3. Utkarsh Small Finance Bank 9.35 16.00

4. Ujjivan Small Finance Bank 9.00 20.00

11. Statutory Liability
11.1. The Bank had a statutory liability of H3,16,493/- on account of appropriations made during the year towards Education Fund, which 

had to be paid to The National Co-operative Union of India Ltd., New Delhi, under The Multi-State Co-operative Societies Act, 2002. 
The payment was made on 1st October 2018.

11.2. DICGC Premium has been paid up-to-date and the next payment due date will fall in May, 2019.

11.3. No penalty has been imposed on the bank by RBI till date.

12. Priority Sector and PSLC Sale
12.1. The Priority Sector and Weaker Section lending ratios along with the details of the PSLC traded of the bank for the year are as follows:

(Amount in H Lacs)

Particulars Amount Percentage (%)

Total Amount lent under Priority Sector 44200.10 72.27%

Less: PSLC Sold (Category) (12900.00) (21.09%)

Net Priority Sector Lending of the Bank 31300.10 51.18%

Weaker Section Lending of the Bank 10652.22 17.41%

Significant Accounting Policies, Disclosures and Notes on Accounts
(Schedule annexed to and forming part of the Balance Sheet as on 31st March 2019 and Profit & Loss Account for the 
year ended 31st March, 2019)

12.2. During the FY 2018-19, the bank has sold Priority Sector Lending certificate of H129.00 Crores and on which bank has earned profit 
of H86.93 lacs. Category wise details are given hereunder. (Amount in H Crores)

S.No. Particulars Amount

1. Micro Enterprises 75.00

2. Small and Marginal Former 3.00

3. Agriculture 9.00

4. General 42.00

 As per the RBI guidelines, this amount has been excluded from the amount of Priority Sector Lending as on 31st March 2019 for the 
purpose of reporting.

13. Appropriation of profit for the year (Appropriation Details)
Bank is following the practice of appropriation of profit towards statutory and other mandatory reserves/funds as on date of balance 
sheet i.e. 31st March of each year. The appropriation towards dividend is made as approved in the AGM, after the meeting is held.

14. Employee Benefits
14.1. The actuarial valuation of the defined benefit obligation and details of surplus/ deficit contributions are shown below:

(Amount in H Lacs)

Particulars 31 March 2019

Defined Benefit Obligation 133.45

Fair value of Plan Assets 173.60

Funded Status - (Surplus)/Deficit (40.15)

Past Service Cost not yet Recognised -

Unrecognised Asset due to Limit in Para 58(B) -

(Asset)/Liability Recognised in the Balance Sheet (40.15)

14.2. Bank contribution to provident fund is H98.46 Lacs in current Financial Year (Prior Year: H91.48 Lacs).

15. Others
An amount of H1,46,72,666/- is outstanding as on the date of the Balance sheet, from Janhit Foundation, an NGO, against advance given 
by bank to support them in carrying out Microfinance activity. The advance is being adjusted each month from the monthly consultancy 
fees paid to Janhit Foundation by the bank. The total adjustment (net reduction) made during the year was H11,19,684/-.

16. Previous year figures have been regrouped and recasted wherever considered necessary to make them comparable with 
those of current year.

Significant Accounting Policies, Disclosures and Notes on Accounts
(Schedule annexed to and forming part of the Balance Sheet as on 31st March 2019 and Profit & Loss Account for the 
year ended 31st March, 2019)

As per our report of even date attached

For G.P. Gupta & Co. Sd/- Sd/-
Chartered Accountants Suveer Kumar Gupta  Sarvesh Singhal
(Firm Regn. No. 004998C) MD & CEO  DIRECTOR

Sd/-    Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
G. P. Gupta   Sudhakar Agarwal  Shiv Puran Gulati  Yashvir Kumar Gupta
Partner (M. No. 073778) DIRECTOR  VICE CHAIRMAN  CHAIRMAN

Saharanpur: 15th June, 2019
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Appropriation of Profit

Annual Operation Plan for FY 2020-21

Particulars Opening 
Balance

Amount 
(in H)

Closing 
Balance

Remarks

Accumulated Profit of previous year 1,43,41,465.96

Add: Adjustments during the year 86,20,702.00

Profit for the year 2018-19 3,84,88,157.28

Total Profit available 6,14,50,325.24

Statutory Reserve* 11,93,55,602.00 96,22,039.00 12,89,77,641.00 25% of current year’s Profit (Mandatory 
as per Multi-State Co-operative 
Societies Act, 2002)

Education Fund* 3,84,882.00 1% of current year’s Profit (Mandatory as 
per Multi-State Co-operative Societies 
Act, 2002)

Contingency Reserve* 3,73,70,528.00 38,48,816.00 4,12,19,344.00 10% of current year’s Profit (Mandatory 
as per Multi-State Co-operative 
Societies Act, 2002)

Total Statutory Appropriation 1,38,55,737.00

Proposed Dividend @ 8% 3,67,07,864.00 3,67,07,864.00 Last year’s dividend amount was  
H3,62,72,348.00 @ 8%

Total Appropriation 5,05,63,601.00

Accumulated Profit C/F to next year 1,08,86,724.24

* Being statutory in nature, these appropriations have already been effected in the Balance-sheet as on 31st March, 2019.

Description Proposed Targets

Branches No change in the number of branches in line with the business plan submitted as part of the SFB 
application

Deposits H1500 crore

Loans & Advances H970 Crore

Net Profit H10 Crore

Membership 39,600

New Initiatives Drive people management and employee engagement, instill learning culture, leverage technology 
offerings to increase business, improve cost income ratio, improve business per employee.

Budget for FY 2020- 21

Long Term Perspective Plan

Income Amount Expenditure Amount

Interest on loans 108.00 Interest on Deposits & Borrowings 91.20

Interest on Investments 48.00 Operating Expenses 38.40

Miscellaneous Income 9.60 Depreciation & Repairs 4.80

Miscellaneous Expenses 5.80

Tax & Provisions 15.40

Net profit 10.00

Total 165.60 Total 165.60

Strategic Driver Outcome

Automation and Innovation Focus on the digital roadmap as identified below: -
- Compliance, risk and reporting 

-  Customer experience 

- Data and analytics 

- Employee digital enablement 

- Internal processes

Customer Service and Experience -  Standardizing and improving customer journey 

-  Build effective customer feedback tools

Talent - Identify strategy for building sustainable talent pipeline 

-  Instill learning culture 

- Improve employee engagement

Partnerships -  Forge strategic partnerships to enhance business value

Risk Management -  Develop an automated risk management, information and cyber security framework

(Amount in H Lacs)
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NOTICE

Shivalik Mercantile Co-operative Bank Ltd.

Notice is hereby given that 22nd Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the members of SHIVALIK MERCANTILE CO-OPERATIVE BANK 
LIMITED will be held on Sunday, September 15, 2019 at 11:00 am at Hotel Royal Residency, Ambala Road, Saharanpur - 247001, 
Uttar Pradesh, to transact the following business:

1. To confirm quorum of 22nd Annual General Meeting (AGM).

2. To grant leave of absence to members of the Bank other than those whose names appear in the attendance register of this 22nd 
Annual General Meeting.

3. To confirm minutes of 21st Annual General Meeting of members of the Bank held on September 16, 2018.

4. To consider and approve Audited Annual Reports, which consist of, the report of Statutory Auditors, Audited Balance Sheet and 
Profit & Loss Account, and report of the Board of Directors for the year ended March 31, 2019 and Cash Flow Statement as on March 
31, 2019.

5. To appropriate Net Profit and to declare dividend as recommended by the Board of Directors for FY 2018-19.

6. To review actual utilization of reserve and other funds for FY 2018-19.

7. To take note of Loans & Advances outstanding against the Directors and their relatives during FY 2018-19.

8. To appoint Statutory Auditors of the Bank for FY 2019-20 and to authorize the Board of Directors to fix their remuneration.

9. To consider and approve Annual Budget for FY 2020-21.

10. To consider and approve Long-Term Perspective Plan and Annual Operation Plan of the Bank for FY 2020-21.

11. To present list of employees who are relatives of members of the Board of Directors and MD & CEO of the Bank.

12. To consider and approve forfeiture of shares of the members who are disqualified from being or continuing as members of the bank 
as specified in the Bye-Laws.

13. Any other items with the permission of Chair.

By Order of the Board of Directors
Sd/-

(Suveer Kumar Gupta)
MD & CEO

Regd. Office:
13/1207, Ansari Road,
Saharanpur – 247001, Uttar Pradesh
Date: August 20, 2019

Notes
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